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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any Statement herein or
this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for a minimum
period of seven days from the date of its publication and on the
Company’s website at http.//www.hklifesciences.com.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in (i) the sale of
healthcare products; (ii) the sale of electronic components and
cotton yarn; (i) the funeral and related businesses; and (iv) the
stem cell technology business.

In September 2012, the Company completed the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of 51% of the entire issued share capital of 159
Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited and its subsidiaries
("159 Group”). 159 Group possesses the user rights of the
intellectual property of the stem cell technology (the “Stem
Cell Technology”) and such technology has been applied for
the Patent Cooperation Treaty in the World Intellectual Property
Organization and patent in the State Intellectual Property Bureau
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the applications
are presently pending approval.

The Group owns the exclusive right to use the Stem Cell
Technology in the PRC, Macau, Hong Kong, Brunei, Burma,
Cambodia, Indonesia, Lao, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand,
The Philippines and Vietnam. 159 Group has commenced its
operation in November 2012 and is operating a service center
and a stem cell processing center in Hong Kong which provide
anti-aging healthcare service including physical examination,
aging testing protocol, implementation of anti-aging application
with Stem Cell Technology and stem cell storage.

In recent years, the global retail sales of anti-aging related
products is estimated at approximately US$15 billion, and
growing in double digits on an annual basis. We believe the stem
cell technology business provide good opportunities for the
Group to diversify from the existing business into a new line of
business with significant growth potentials. It will broaden our
revenue base and bring a significant contribution to the Group in
the future.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Following the completion of the Acquisition of 159 Group,
the Company changed its name to Hong Kong Life Sciences
and Technologies Group Limited to reflect the new business
development and corporate image. The Group is devoted to
promote and apply the Stem Cell Technology and will bring the
latest life sciences and biomedical technologies to people. During
the year, the Group entered into certain distribution agreements
in relation to the exclusive right to import, market, distribute and
sell the life sciences and biomedical products in Hong Kong and
Macau. The Group will provide the best healthcare solutions to
medical professionals based on the latest development of life
sciences and biomedical technology. Through the introduction
of innovative life sciences advancements around the world, we
strive to offer more healthcare choices for people to improve
their health.

During the year, the Company had placed an aggregate of
498,500,000 ordinary shares and the net proceeds from the
placing of shares were approximately HK$96 million. The
proceeds have been utilized for the investment in the stem cell
business and general working capital of the Group. We consider
that the placing can strengthen the capital base of the Company
and enhance the liquidity position for our future business
developments.

APPRECIATIONS

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, customers and business
partners who have been offering their support, confidence
and encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion,
diligence and effort of the management and the members of staff
who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for improvements
of the Group. With all these supports remain, we shall continue to
explore means to improve the Group's performance and provide
investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$86,113,000 (2012: HK$71,727,000),
representing an increase of 20% as compared to last year. The
new stem cell technology business line was commenced and
began to contribute its turnover to the Group in November 2012.

The administrative and other operating expenses for the
year amounted to approximately HK$78,432,000 (2012:
HK$36,874,000), which included a non-cash expenses of
HK$5,671,000 (2012: HK$5,672,000) relating to the share-based
payments to certain consultants of the Company. The increase
of administrative and other operating expenses was mainly due
to the increment of the staff salaries and allowances, operating
lease rentals expenses in respect of the new business line in
Hong Kong and the branch office in PRC and professional fee for
the Acquisition of 159 Group.

During the year under review, the Group recorded an impairment
loss of goodwill in relation to the Acquisition of 159 Group of
approximately HK$28,205,000. Details of which are set out in the
Note 31 of this report.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
was approximately HK$35,614,000 (2012: HK$28,448,000) and the
loss per share was 1.19 HK cents (2012: 1.25 HK cents).

Stem Cell Technology Business

The turnover of stem cell technology business for the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,850,000 which accounted for
2.1% of the Group’s turnover and recorded a segmental loss of
approximately HK$18,857,000 mainly from the administrative and
other operating expenses.

159 Anti-Aging Center

On 18 September 2012, the Group had successfully completed
the Acquisition of 159 Group. 159 Group possesses the user
rights of the Stem Cell Technology. Such technology has been
applied for the patent and is presently pending approval. 159
Group is principally engaged in the anti-aging applications and
relevant service and has commenced its operation in November
2012. The details of the 159 Group’s assets acquired and liabilities
recognized at the date of acquisition (the “Acquisition Date”)
are set out in the Note 31 of this report.
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BEENWE DN

The anti-aging application with the Stem Cell Technology is a
fairly new service. The Group has opened an anti-aging center
and a stem cell processing center to promote and apply the
Stem Cell Technology. During the pilot operation for the year,
159 Group recorded the turnover of HK$1,850,000 and the loss of
approximately HK$13,970,000 respectively since the Acquisition
Date. The loss attributable to the Group was approximately
HK$7,125,000. The loss was mainly from the staff and related
cost as well as rental expenses. The Group will increase its effort
to promote the anti-aging application and related service and will
continue to attempt to broaden the customer base.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement and the
supplemental deed dated 4 September 2012 and 6 September
2012 respectively (the "Agreement”), the aggregated
consideration of HK$195 million (the “Consideration”) will be
subject to the Consideration adjustments and such arrangement
will encourage Add Talent Holdings Limited (“Add Talent”) to
achieve the target earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (the “Target EBITDA"). In view of the current
development plan, economic and industry environment, the
Directors still have confidence that the Target EBITDA can be
achieved.

Biomedical And Life Sciences (“BALS”)

During the year, the Group entered into certain distribution
agreements in relation to the exclusive right to import, market,
distribute and sell the life sciences and biomedical products
in Hong Kong and Macau through our BALS platform. The
Group has commenced its business operation in April 2013.
During the period, BALS had no revenue and recorded a loss of
HK$4,887,000 mainly from the rental expenses and administrative
expenses. The Group will continue to diversify our stem cell and
related products to strengthen our market position.

Sale of Healthcare Products

The turnover of healthcare products for the year amounted
to approximately HK$17,146,000 (2012: HK$14,904,000) which
accounted for 19.9% (2012: 20.8%) of the Group'’s turnover. This
segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$92,000 (2012:
HK$147,000).

FERBARBNETREZ A —BHARE - K&
SECRRMEERORBAREEFRL - HE
RERBMAMEN - AREFAN - 1595E B KE
H B 5 Bl 8715 & 3£ 58 K B518. 1,850,000 % 7T R 4Y
13,970,000 % 7T o 7N £ [ fE 15 B 18 49 & 7,125,000
BT BERIEXBE 8T MAMKANRELH
X o AEEBBRAOENEEZEARBEERE
WiBgEERERTPER -

BEREASINA-E——FAANBEBER-_Z—=
FRARNBZzZEER#RBAZE((ZHE])
42 X {8 195,000,000 7o ([ K& ) AT fER (B A
B BURHBHEISEERBRAR[BE])
ERRE B EMEENZBEENE(EE
EBITDA]) - XM A EF & KBERITER
% EFNABEE O PESE ZEBITDA ©

EYEBEREGRE([LEYBEREGREZ]))
RAFE  AEEEREMBESREGRIEZT
B REBKEBMAERBERED £ 2K
HEEMRIBRAENBBERIT VAT DHEHE -
AEBER-_ZE—=FNARMAEBLLE - RNA
HiE - EMEEREGRIZ2N ESEE MR -
WSS R B S M RITHF X 2 B8 4,887,000
B ARBBEES T EERERKEEE
- M ERETISHAL -

HERBRER

FA - REEMZEETELHF7,146,0008 (=
T—ZF 149040008 70)  HAEEEEHE
19.9% (=T ——1F : 20.8%) o WD MBS EHEL
92,000/ 7T (== — =4 : 147,000/ 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 o 4£#f 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

Sale of Electronic Components and Cotton Yarn
The turnover of electronic components and cotton yarn for
the year amounted to approximately HK$20,156,000 (2012:
HK$18,560,000) which accounted for 23.4% (2012: 25.9%) of the
Group's turnover. This segment recorded a loss of approximately
HK$3,605,000 (2012: profit HK$28,000).

Funeral and Related Businesses

The turnover of funeral and related businesses for the year
amounted to approximately HK$46,961,000 (2012: HK$38,263,000)
which accounted for 54.6% (2012: 53.3%) of the Group’s turnover.
This segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$1,754,000
(2012: HK$7,582,000).

The funeral and related businesses had recorded negative
results in the past few years, the Group will take a very cautious
approach to manage it and implement a tighter control in the
near future. However, the operation of cemetery companies is
mostly relying on the local management teams and the cyclical
nature of the market. These businesses may not be able to
demonstrate promising growth potential in the near future and
the Company has no plan to make further investment in the
funeral and related businesses.

Loan Receivables

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had loan receivables of
approximately HK$57,329,000 (2012: HK$30,400,000). During the
year, the loan interest income from the loan receivables were
approximately HK$7,045,000 (2012: HK$276,000). There is no
default in repayment and no provision for the impairment of loan
receivable was made during the year.

Securities Investments

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$62,876,000 (2012:
HK$43,258,000). During the year under review, the Company
recorded a gain on disposal of held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$590,000 (2012: HK$311,000) and a gain on fair
value changes of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$7,319,000 (2012: HK$5,866,000). The Company had not
recorded a loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments
during the year (2012: HK$19,881,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

PROSPECTS

The global economic environment remains challenging and
uncertain for the year 2013. The Board will constantly keep
reviewing the Group's strategies and operations with a view to
improve its business performance and shareholders returns.
After completion of the Acquisition of 159 Group, the Board
intends to concentrate our attention in the stem cell technology
business and will explore other investment opportunities to
expand and diversify its business portfolios if applicable.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had net current assets
approximately HK$207,758,000 (2012: HK$212,123,000) and
the cash and bank balances was approximately HK$29,157,000
(2012: HK$108,931,000). The bank borrowing was approximately
HK$35,910,000 (2012: HK$18,504,000) and the interest
expenses for the year were approximately HK$2,582,000 (2012:
HK$1,171,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, being the ratio of
total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 32.9% (2012:
32.3%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 1 April 2012, the issued share capital of the Company was
2,492,786,138 shares.

Placing of New Shares Under General Mandate
On 27 June 2012, the Company and Kingston Securities Limited
(the "Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement,
pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed
to place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort basis, a
maximum of 498,500,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.20 per
placing share (the “Placing”). The net proceeds of approximately
HK$96,100,000 from the Placing have been utilized for the
investment in the stem cell technology business and the general
working capital of the Group. The Placing was completed on 18
July 2012. Details of the Placing were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 June 2012, 4 July 2012 and 18 July
2012.

Issurance of the Consideration Shares for the
Acquisition of 159 Group

As disclosed on 18 September 2012, the Company had issued
and allotted 300,666,667 consideration shares to vendor’s
nominees upon completion of the Acquisition of 159 Group.

As at 31 March 2013, the issued share capital of the Company
was 3,291,952,805 Shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

MATERIAL EVENT

Change of Company name

On 31 October 2012, the English and Chinese name of the
Company has been changed to "Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited” and “&E £ I 2R TEE B R
A A]" respectively.

Discloseable Transactions

Sale and purchase agreement in relation to stem cell
technology business

The Agreement was entered into between the Company, Add
Talent, Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin"), Mr. Deng Jun Jie ("Mr.
Deng") and 159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited for
the Acquisition of 159 Group at the Consideration (subject to
adjustments). On 18 September 2012, the Group had successfully
completed the Acquisition of 159 Group. The Consideration
were satisfied by HK$30,000,000 in cash and a maximum of
550,000,000 Consideration Shares to be allotted and issued by
the Company to Add Talent, which 300,666,667 Consideration
Shares were allotted and issued by the Company to Add Talent's
nominees on the Acquisition Date. Details of the Acquisition of
159 Group were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 4 September 2012, 6 September 2012, 11 September 2012
and 18 September 2012.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the aggregated consideration
of HK$195 million had been/will be satisfied by the following
manner:

(@)  HK$30,000,000 in cash was fully paid to Add Talent;

(b)  HK$90,200,000 by means of 300,666,667 Consideration
Shares were issued and allotted by the Company to Add
Talent upon completion;

(c)  HK$15,300,000 by means of 51,000,000 Consideration
Shares to be issued and allotted by the Company to Add
Talent in relation to the Target. EBITDA for the period from
1 October 2012 to 31 December 2013 (the "Guaranteed
Period A");

EAREHE

I ONCIE=E

RZE—ZF+HA=1T—8 XARZEXEH
X % 785 Bl E & [Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited] & [E&& £ @RI 2
ffTEEERRA] -

ATRERS
BRI 2 BB

RAF B2 MR B L(HEL]) - BE
REE(TBEE)EIOBLEEEEE(FH)
BRARGI L ZBE NABHERKRE(RITHA
B)WHEISOER - R-_E——FAA+N\H
REBEBKDERBEISOEE - RETUR S
30,000,000 8 TT A A2 &) G IS 2 A0 2 K 3T &
% 550,000,000 AR LB AR 19 315 + & A 300,666,667
BRARBERNHEBAAQRANWERBRBE 2 RE
ABLEE R EETT - BREAREIOEEZFBEERA
NEIHBA—T——FNLAWMA —_2—Z—F N
ARNBE ZE—ZFNA+—BEZZE—Z=ZFh
A+NRAZRAEREE -

RIRE A - KRB 195,0000008 T,/ 1A
THRLN; ¢

() EBRHLAREMEE 30,000,000 7T

() ARBEN TS IB RGN %
300,666,667 R AR AE I 7 75 = 5215 90,200,000
BT

© HRZZE—=ZFTA—BARBE=_Z—=%
+ZA=+—BLHBEA(REBHA) 2 E
fZEBITDAM S + ANA A B B A 3G 2 81T
X Bid 2% 51,000,000 X B & 2 7 RN
15,300,000 7T

10 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &&4 fn RIEERTEE AR A R




Management Discussion and An

BEENWR DT

(©)

HK$25,500,000 by means of 85,000,000 Consideration
Shares to be issued and allotted by the Company to
Add Talent in relation to the EBITDA if the EBITDA is not
less than the Target EBITDA of HK$25,500,000 for the
period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the
“Guaranteed Period B"), and

HK$34,000,000 by means of 113,333,333 Consideration
Shares to be issued and allotted by the Company to Add
Talent credited as fully paid upon either:

(i) an application of Dr. Lin for a patent to the State
Intellectual Property Office of the PRC (International
Application No. PCT/CN2011/000829) being
successful and Dr. Lin being granted such patent; and
the user right under the licence deed (the “Licence
Deed"), which was entered between Dr. Lin and 159
Anti-Aging Center (H.K.) Limited (formerly known as
Institute of Anti-Aging Medical Research on Stem
Cells (Hong Kong) Limited) regarding a licence for the
user right of the Stem Cell Technology, remaining
fully effective without breach by Dr. Lin of the Licence
Deed; or

(i) the actual accumulative EBITDA achieved for
Guaranteed Period A and Guaranteed Period B being
not less than HK$25,500,000.

MR —_E—mNF—A—HARBRE=-FT—N
F+-ZA=+—BLHEA(HEIHEB) 2
EBITDAZ~ 4> 7 B #Z EBITDA ( B 25,500,000 7%
JT)  ZRR ) # B EBITDA LS 18 7] 18 2 3% 17
X Fic % 85,000,000 ik X B B 9 2 5 = X 1+
25,500,000/87C ¢ &

ARBEREEIA T BHEEBAIEZET
K B 3 113,333,333 B R AB A {2 7 2
34,000,000 % 7T -

() MEBLTEIEFBEFEFBEAFEF (R
B ER 5 55 PCT/CN2011/000829 55 ) 1 #&
BTEEBEEEF  RMBTEEE
19OMBEERLBRAT (FIBEEH
MM EEZBEMEMERAR) HE
AR BT 2 FARERT PI B FTRI S 25T
AFEZE((FURRE]) T2 FERE
MA+R&N  EMBEHEERT
AR

iy MRFHAMREHBERER Z 25T
EBITDA 54 25,500,000 7 7T
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Framework agreement in relation to establish a joint
venture to set up and operate a research centre

On 8 February 2013, Elite Charm Investments Limited (“Elite
Charm”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a framework agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Tongji University Advanced Institute of
Translational Medicine, A2 A 221 & 5 77 24 B (Tongji University
Affiliated Oriental Hospital*), Shanghai Advanced Research
Institute, Chinese Academy of Sciences and B JK & 40 j8 &} 5
(E/8) B R 2 7] (Lianzhao Stem Cells Technology (Shanghai)
Company Limited*) (collectively, the “Parties”). Pursuant to the
Framework Agreement, the Parties intend to establish a joint
venture (the "JV”) to set up and operate a research centre (the
"Research Centre”) to conduct research in stem cell science
and technology in transforming stem cell research results into
clinical and commercial use.

Elite Charm would provide the JV with capital investment up to
RMB60,000,000 payable in cash from the internal resources of the
Company for the purpose of renovation of the related premises,
acquisition of equipment and facilities and operation of the
Research Centre. Elite Charm would also provide management
service to the JV and the Research Centre. The other Parties
would contribute mainly one or more of the following: capital
investment, premises, research knowledge and experience,
human resources, reputation and payment of staff remuneration.

Details of the Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2013.

As at the date of this report, the Framework Agreement has still
not yet been completed.

FHRAVEELE URVUREEBEFRFOZE
it
RZZE—=F_AN\B ARGz EEZ2ENEA
Al Elite Charm Investments Limited ([ Elite Charm |)
HA[R] K Bt BB L%l - RIERZHEBR
T EeRT - REIRIERT e S R B Ik
B (L8 BRAR(FRB IRTAEH DI ER
ek ([HEZRIG R ) - BEBIERWE - FTAS 7 HK
VeaEPE([EELE])  URY REEHRTPL
(TR AL ]) IR B AR RIS - B 35
BRRE(CRERR REERE -

Elite Charm A £ b ERFEESREKZ AR
# 60,000,000 7T * MIARRE] 2 NEBEJR AR &
A BRI X - W R BRI R
EPLEIE L o Elite Charm i A& &R 2
KRR DR E R R - RtRI BT HEE
BAWNT—RXZEER: E2KRE WE W
THBMRAEE - ANER  BERTETHM -

BRELGE HEERALFANA-E—=
F-ANAZDERES -

RARRE B - ERBZEIDARTTK
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Acquisition agreement in relation to the acquisition of
Gold Arch Group Limited

On 28 March 2013, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition of GAGL") with Mr. Yang Guofeng
(“Mr. Yang"). Pursuant to the Acquisition of GAGL, the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase and Mr. Yang conditionally
agreed to sell 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 each, representing
the entire issued share capital of Gold Arch Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “"GAGL"),
which has been granted exclusive licences on the five patents,
and all amounts (whether principal, interest or otherwise) which
GAGL owes to Mr. Yang as at the date of completion of the
Acquisition of GAGL at a total consideration of HK$62,000,000
payable in cash from the internal resources of the Company.
Such consideration shall be satisfied by HK$36,600,000 payable at
the execution of the Acquisition of GAGL, HK$10,000,000 payable
within 14 business days after the execution of the Acquisition of
GAGL and HK$15,400,000 payable no later than 3 months after
the date of completion of the Acquisition of GAGL.

The Company intends to commercialise the five patents with a
view to expand the Group's existing business in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Details of the Acquisition of GAGL were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 March 2013.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition of the GAGL has still
not yet been completed.

Other Transactions

During the year under review, the Group has entered a
memorandum of understanding, a deed of assignment and
assumption, and a distribution agreement with other parties.
Details of them are show as following:

Memorandum of Understanding

On 11 November 2012, Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (the “LST Group”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of
understanding (the "“MoU") with Life Length, S.L. ("Life Length”),
which is principally engaged in the highly sophisticated and
patented in-vitro diagnostic testing of telomeres. Pursuant to
the MoU, the Investor may acquire an approximately 38% equity
stake in Life Length for a consideration of approximately US$9
million. Life Length may form a joint venture with the Investor to
establish one laboratory in Hong Kong and another in the PRC.

BRRIBEFIZEEE R B2 Ik 3

R-ZZ—Z=ZFZA=-+/\B ARAEBHIE%
E(BEE]FTLWE ((GAGLUES |) - 1R
EGAGLUEE - ARRIERHREBEMBRER
BHERBEHE1REEIOET 2 E@E - AR
RERLEEAMAYZAREMEEGR AT
([GAGL] ' Z AR ERABEEN BRI ) 2E
B D 21T BRI GAGL R 52 5k GAGL Y BB B A 45
BREZIAERE(TRAS - FIEsE ) 4
R B 562,000,000 70 * W IAARRA G ZAEE
BB S - BAREAEREE GAGLIEER X
157 36,600,000 78 7T + FA%5E GAGLUNIE R 14 & %
H R 32 110,000,000 7 7T K2 A T E A 5e AL GAGL U
B & B 1% =8 A W1 15,400,000 7T °

ERAEERERENRBEERTEZABER A
REEHS AREMETEEL

BRAGAGLKBZ FBERNARREMA—T—=
FZAZTNBZRAEAHE -

RARRE B H - B GAGLIIARTEMK °

HEX S

REBEFE  NEBEREMFTHNTFLHRERES
8 ERENAERBARD HE - AREFIEE
FIEnT

SRR =7

R-ZT——F+—A+—H AREIZEERZE
B A EnRIBERTEEBRAR(LSTER])
£ | jfe Length, S.L. ([Life Length| - TEH#E=5/E
EERERRINZE SR ST A EOR N2
TEHET((FRRESE]) -  REGEESE -
1% & % 7] f W B Life Length 4938% IR 1 - KB 4
739,000,0002 7T ° Life Length 7] g B2 4% & & 48 A
BEDE  UDBREBRTESKRI—EER

o
=
£z °
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On 16 November 2012, LST Group granted Life Length a loan
facility of US$0.3 million repayable on or before 16 November
2013 at an annual interest rate of 8%. However, on or before 16
February 2013, the Investor has the right by written notice to Life
Length to convert the loan facility (together with accrued interest)
into ordinary shares of Life Length as representing 1.267% of the
total issued share capital of Life Length.

The MoU was expired in January 2013 and LST Group has not
exercised its right to convert the loan facility into ordinary shares
of Life Length. The loan facility and its interest shall be refunded
by Life Length on or before 16 November 2013.

Details of the MoU were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 November 2012.

Deed of Assignment and Assumption

A deed of assignment and assumption (the "Deed of
Assignment and Assumption”) dated 11 January 2013 entered
into between the Company, ETON CORPORATION LIMITED
("ETON"), a connected person of the Company by virtue of 100%
of its entire issued share capital being held by Mr. Tong Cheuk
Fung, a director of the Company's five wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and MEDIPOST Co., LTD. (“"MEDIPOST") in relation to the
assigning by ETON to the Company of its rights and obligations
under a distribution agreement (the "DA of Product”) dated 2
November 2012 entered into between ETON and MEDIPOST in
relation to, inter alia, the distribution of the finished product of
CARTISTEM® at nil consideration.

Details of the Deed of Assignment and Assumption and the DA of
Product were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
15 January 2013.

Distribution Agreement

On 25 February 2013, LST Operating Limited (“LST"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
distribution agreement (the "DA of Telome”) with Telome Health
Inc. (“Telome”). Pursuant to the DA of Telome, Telome appointed
LST as exclusive distributor for Telome in Hong Kong and Macau
to distribute the ORAGENEeDXx test kit for the collection of
human DNA from saliva samples and/or blood samples for use
in determining telomere length and the test (the “Product”) in
Hong Kong and Macau.

RZE—ZF+— A+ /"8 ST B mLife
Length % tH — % A 81300,000 X2 EF@E - 2
RZZE—=F+—A+ "B ZRIEE  FH=E
B8E - R MZZE—=F - FF+/NB=H 250
WEEBEAZEmAALfe Length - B ERREE
(GERERFIE) B A E R Lfe Length2 32
BEITIRZR1.267% 2 Life Length E3@MK »

REECHN T —=F—AfER ' MLSTEEL
AT E R RS i A Life Length I A% 2 1
F o Life LengthZBR =T —=F+— A +/xHB=k
ZHREEERBEREFS -

EERBETCEZFBERARRAHA-T
——HFFT—ATNAZRAEARE -

BEERAIERIR

RAAd - FEARAR(FE] ARAFZH
BEALT BAARAETARZENBAGZE
EESEAEEAEERIHE ETRAI00%) EH
MEDIPOST Co., LTD. (TMEDIPOST]) 57 57 H Hi &
TE—=F—AtT—BzERERAERE(EE
RAERE])  ATEBEFENZRERAEAAF
HEEN > EnE((Emo Rz AFEE
MEDIPOSTFE] Z AHEi R —T——F+—H=-HZ
e - ABBE(HEPETE) D HCARTISTEM® R
m)ETZENREE -

EHERRERREURES S BT HEE
RAAFRMA-E—=F—A+RAZALRN
B -

kbt

R-ZE—Z=ZF_A-+AB AREIZEE2%E
B$ /8 2 &) LST Operating Limited (TLST) £2 Telome
Health Inc. ([Telome ) 5T 37 % 5 17 & ([ Telome
DeEtEE ) o BIE Telome 2 f17 3% - Telome £ £
LSTEEB KRR 2B R Telome D #HE - RE B
KOBRPI 9 SHUEHE R AR AN ISR DR B AR M B A KR
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LST had paid to Telome an initial payment in the amount of
US$150,000, which is a non-refundable, but is creditable against
any payments payable by LST to Telome for the purchase price
for the Product during the initial period. Telome shall conduct an
inspection and validation of a laboratory designed by LST which
LST decides to use to run the Telo Test and which may be set
up by LST or by a third party. After receipt of Telome's validation
certificate, LST shall pay to Telome a validation payment in the
amount of US$650,000 in non-refundable and non-creditable
basis.

Details of the DA of Telome were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 February 2013.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
dollars, United Stated dollars and Renminbi and considers that
the impact of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal.

CHARGE OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2012: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed a total of 156 (2012:
133) full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year, the total remuneration to employees, including Directors’
emoluments and retirement benefits amounted to approximately
HK$24,031,000 (2012: HK$10,050,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, qualification, experience
and the prevailing industry practice.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2012: Nil).
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition agreement in relation to the
acquisition of a property in Shenzhen

On 27 May 2013, &I ERAXERIE 5 B2 7] (Bio Technology
Trading Company Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (as the purchaser), & 31l T 72 B %178 B R A 7
(Shenzhen Shunxing Logistics Company Limited*) (as the vendor)
and Mr. Ji Hong and &I T m 3 B % 2 & B IR A 7] (Shenzhen
Manchen Real Estate Development Company Limited*) (as
the guarantors) entered into an acquisition agreement (the
"SZ Property Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of
a property in Shenzhen. The consideration will be calculated
at RMB14,000 per square metre and is RMB33,600,000 in total
based on a gross floor area of 2,400 square metres which will
be subject to final determination. Such consideration is payable
in cash from the internal resources of the Company and shall
be satisfied by RMB23,520,000 payable within 7 days from the
date of execution of the SZ Property Agreement, RMB6,720,000
payable within 3 days from the date of passing of the completion
inspection by the relevant authorities and the balance payable
within 3 days from the date of the issue of the relevant 5 b &
# 3 (land and building title certificates*) to the purchaser. The
Company intends that the property be used as the purchaser’s
office for its operation in the PRC.

Details of the SZ Property Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 May 2013.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition of a property in
Shenzhen has still not yet been completed.

* These are English translations of Chinese names or words which
are included for reader’s convenience only and should not be
regarded as the official English translation of such Chinese names
or words. If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names
or words and their English translations, the Chinese names or
words shall prevail.
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DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongging (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 45, was appointed as
the executive Director and the vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. Mr. Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring
in Architectural Design and Theory from South China University
of Technology. He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree
majoring in Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of
Engineering Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging
Institute of Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been
studied in Ecole d'Architecture Paris-la-Seine in Paris, France. He
is a Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner
of the People’s Republic of China. In addition, Mr. Jiang was also
the member of ¥ M A RER B2 KX 210 Z & & (City Ecological
Planning and Construction Academic Committee, being its
unofficial English translation) of the Urban Planning Society of
China and also was a consultant of EEFE BT MR EIER

HI LR (Urban Planning Construction and Protection of Ancient
City of Lijiang, Yunnan Province, being its unofficial English
translation). He has extensive experience in planning design,
architectural design, landscape architecture design, planning
management and project planning. Mr. Jiang was the executive
director of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January 2012.

Mr. Lu zhigiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 38, was appointed as
the executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance
officer, the authorized representative and the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Central State University of the
United States of America and a Bachelor Degree in Engineering
and a Bachelor Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong
University. Mr. Lu used to learning a Master of Science Degree
from the International Purchasing & Supply Chain Management
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management. He is the leadership
development chairperson of Lions Club in Shenzhen. Mr. Lu has
many years experience in management and investment. He was
the managing director of Chin Mining Investment Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Cai Da (“Mr. Cai”), aged 38, was appointed as the
executive Director on 30 September 2011. Mr. Cai is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a
Civil Engineering Degree from Hunan University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Cai is an executive director and the vice
chairman of China Natural Investment Company Limited (stock
code: 8250). He is also a chairman of FIITEEKL E LR ER
x| (Shenzhen Bao Kuang Investment Development Company
Limited, being its unofficial English translation), the deputy
chairman of Jade's International Investment Limited and the vice
president of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Chu Hon Pong (“Mr. Chu”), aged 63, joined the Company
as the executive Director on 9 October 2007 and was appointed
as the vice-chairman of the Board on 21 January 2008. Mr.
Chu subsequently re-designated as the executive Director
and the chairman of the Board on 29 December 2008. He has
resigned as the chairman of the Company but remains as the
executive Director on 30 November 2012. Mr. Chu holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Stevens Institute of
Technology in New Jersey, the United States of America. He is
the chairman of American Dream Parks & Entertainment Group.
His businesses covered land and property development and
trade of petroleum in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Mr. Chu
has over 30 years' experience in direct investment, international
trade, manufacturing, business and industrial management in
the PRC, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Vietham and the United States of
America. He has been the personal assistant to Mr. Robert Miller,
the chairman of Search Investment Holdings Limited and was
designated as chief executive officer and chairman to a listed
company and certain corporations in the PRC and Hong Kong. In
the early 80’s, Mr. Chu was appointed as the factory manager in
a joint venture steel factory, namely Sino Master Steel Company
Limited, in Shenzhen, the PRC. In the 90's, he was the founder of
the duty free industry in Vietnam. Mr. Chu is an independent non-
executive director of DVN (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 500).
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Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 46, was appointed as
the non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as the executive Director on 30 November 2009.
Mr. Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process
in Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 15 years' experience in accounting and
auditing fields including over 10 years’ experience in other
listed companies. Mr. Chui is an executive director of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) and an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148).

Ms. Li Mei (“"Ms. Li"), aged 33, was appointed as the executive
Director on 21 September 2012. Ms. Li holds a degree of Master
of Business Administration in Financial Management from
York University, United States of America. She has extensive
experience in financial services business. Ms. Li is a licensed
person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry
on type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam”), aged 65, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 December
2012. Ms. Lam currently is the sub-director and the shareholder
of GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR TRANSPORT COMPANY
LIMITED. She was the non-executive director and the non-
executive chairman of Zhong Hua International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1064). Ms. Lam has over 27 years' business
experience in the mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau region.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (“Mr. Chi”), aged 44, was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 1
January 2010. Mr. Chi is also the chairman of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate
member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi has over 20 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is an executive director
of each of Guocang Group Limited (formerly known as Hua
Yi Copper Holdings Limited, stock code: 559), China Sandi
Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Grand Forestry Green
Resources Group Limited, stock code: 910), Generic (Holdings)
Limited (formerly known as Morning Star Resources Limited,
stock code: 542) and M Dream Inworld Limited (stock code:
8100). Mr. Chi is also an independent non-executive director of
each of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148),
Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Sam Woo Holdings Limited, stock code: 2322), China Natural
Investment Company Limited (stock code: 8250), Perfect Shape
(PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1830) and L'sea Resources
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Goodtop
Tin International Holdings Limited, stock code: 195). He was
an independent non-executive director of Interchina Holdings
Ccompany Limited (stock code: 202) from 4 October 2011 to 15
August 2012
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Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 65, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University
in Shenzhen (RITS), China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is
currently the director and consultant of 2 M KX 5= /& JE F &
A Al (Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui Li Group Limited, being its
unofficial English translation). He is also the Standing Committee
Member of Guangdong Huizhow of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIA RECA B A SR EREMTE
%% Z& B), the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-General of Hong
Kong Federation of Huichow Associations Limited and the Deputy
Secretary-General of Hong Kong Federation of Guangdong Hakka
Associations.

Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“Mr. Gui”), aged 55, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Gui is also the member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of Business
Administration from California Southern University (formerly
known as Southern California University for Professional Studies).
Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of the board of GN International
Group and the chairman of World City Cooperation Organization
committee of China. He possesses the professional qualifications
such as China Certified Real Estate Appraiser, Certified Public
Valuer and Registered Land Valuer. Mr. Gui has 20 years
corporate experience and 5 years working experience in the
government of the PRC.
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Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung"), aged 61, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013.
Mr. Hung is also the member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a
graduate diploma in Accounting from University of Strathclyde,
Glasgow. Mr. Hung has over 30 years of experience in accounting
and finance and is a financial controller of a Hong Kong
listed company. He is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive
director of each of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock
code: 292), Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock code: 214) and
Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58). H
was an independent non-executive director of Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (formerly known as SMI Publishing Group
Limited, stock code: 8010) from 3 September 2008 to 5 August
2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin"), aged 55, is a director of 159 Group
and is one of world leading scientists in the field of Stem Cell
Technology research and recognised through numerous pending
patents as well as publications. After obtaining his Doctorate
degree from the German University of Marburg in 1994, Dr. Lin
worked in the Max Delbrlick Center For Molecular Medicine in
Berlin. In the mid-90's, he conducted his post doctoral research
at the University of Pennsylvania, USA. In 1997, Dr. Lin returned
to Germany and worked in the University of Kiel. In Germany,
he also continued in areas such as regenerative medicine and
cell biology. This was where Dr. Lin pioneered the reversed
induction and incubation techniques of hematopoietic stem
cells and later also did the same for numerous other stem cells
target categories. In 2002, he came back to China to head up
research teams working on reverse induction techniques, and
in the process laid the foundation of most of the currently used
techniques for the production of significant quantity of pure
stem cells. In 2010, Dr. Lin formed the company CSC Stem Cells
Biotechnology Company Limited in Beijing to continue research
into the role of stem cells in the anti-aging process.

Dr. Lin has interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company. Details of his shareholding has been disclosed to the
table headed “Substantial Shareholders” of Directors’ Report in
this report.

22 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

E AT SFUES

HABEE(HEED 615 RZE—=F=
AZ+N\BEZERBILIERNITES - AXET

“E‘J#ﬂ RAEZLZE® FMEZEEERIEERZ
BEB@UIKE - BREENREBARE  BEHEE+

2 {7 - 7 & University of Strathclyde, Glasgow 78
BERRENR - AEERETRERAESR
=T FER AR —EAEB LT AREENS
BE  BABEHETGHMAERE AR
nEgrze8 AEEWRHRAZEHEEEEFR

DA RSR - 292) « EEIERR AR AR (BH
R 214) RETE BB R B R A | (D HRER -

58) ZEUFHITES - WBEN_FZT/\FNA
SHEZ—F/\ARR  RRKBREEEEAR
RAR(FEEXEMEBBRAR - BRMHKIE:
8010) (BB FEMITESE ©

SREEE
MEBELE(MBLD) 555 B1I9KEZE
N AMRAZEHREMBMARELRER
BEZBERFP2EN  WBERZERX - %T@
TR NN FREEESREASH L &
1% sk B A AR 2 Max Delbriick 2 F 28 £/ 0 (Max
Delbr(ick Center For Molecular Medicine) » J1+4
RPE - BEREBEESY AT REREHETE
WE - MBLTR—NNEFEREEREBARE
BAS - IR EERBLEESERARENESE
EIEEEMRE o UL ER - MBTRAEI T ¥ M
FHE R LEMBAREN - HEIRRE 7T HAib
ZESMEREEEMN ¥ RFE Ry o ©®
_E?_i HEEFE - EERFEEE IR
FRFERMARIE  ZEMRAENFER
CABHEEASEHERBMETTEAR - R
ZE—TF  MIELRIERBR T CSC Stem Cells
Biotechnology Company Limited - # 45 ff 9 % 4R
MM REBRER ZIER -

MELTR AR RO RBERh P HEEE -5
AR REFRER A REESTSRE T ERR
IR A FE o

EBRAT



Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that good
quality corporate governance would assist the management
to monitor the Company’s business activities effectively
and thus interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code and CG
Report”). The Company’s compliance and deviations throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013 will discuss below:

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 t0 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct
and the required standard of dealings throughout the year ended
31 March 2013.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its
affairs. In practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision
making in all major matters of the Company include approving
and monitoring of all policy matters, setting of objectives,
annual budgets and overall strategies, material transaction,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Company are delegated to the senior
management of the Company. These responsibilities include
the implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination
and direction of day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
senior management of the Company and the Board has the full
support of them to discharge its responsibilities.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board comprises eleven
Directors and their respective roles in the Board are set out as
follows:

Mr. Jiang Hongging
Executive Director and Vice Chairman
(appointed on 1 December 2012)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Cai Da
Executive Director
Mr. Chu Hon Pong
Executive Director
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Executive Director
Ms. Li Mei
Executive Director
(appointed on 21 September 2012)
Ms. Lam Kuo
Non-executive Director and Chairman
(appointed on 1 December 2012)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Independent Non-executive Director
(appointed on 21 September 2012)
Mr. Gui Qiangfang
Independent Non-executive Director
(appointed on 21 September 2012)
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Independent Non-executive Director
(appointed on 28 March 2013)

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the GEM website and the Company’s website.

The profile of each Director are set out in the “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” section on pages 17 to 22 of this
report.
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During the year under review, the Company has failed to comply
with Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that the number of
independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDS") falls below
one-third of the Board. The Company reviewed the structure
of the Board and identified a suitable candidate to fulfill the
requirement under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules on 28
March 2013.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company currently has four INEDs which
representing more than one-third of the Board, and with at
least one of them having appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
INEDs can assist the management to formulate the Group's
development strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with required
standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate
system to protect the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders. The Company has received an annual confirmation
in respect of their independence from each of the INEDs and the
Company believes that their independence is in compliance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the "Chief
Executive Officer”).

THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended
the meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). Notice of all regular Board meetings
are duly given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail
for any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes
of the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. INEDs who have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

During the Board meetings, the Directors determined overall
strategic direction and objectives and approved quarterly, interim
and annual results, and other significant matters.

There were 40 Board meetings held for the year ended 31
March 2013. Individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings are set out
in the table on page 30 of this report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and CG
Report, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing. To ensure a balance of power and authority of
the Company, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr.
Lu Zhigiang respectively.

Mr. Chu Hon Pong has resigned as the Chairman but remains as
the executive Director and Ms. Lam Kuo was appointed as the
Chairman and the non-executive Director, both with effect from
1 December 2012.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
management and business operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code and CG
Report, the non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election.
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The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for
a specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.

The newly appointed Directors are provided with an induction
and information to ensure that they have a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations.

A professional training course was delivered by a professional
training centre to the Directors in April 2012 to update the
Directors on the new amendments to the CG Code and CG
Report and associated Listing Rules as well as the directors’
duties. The Directors appointed after April 2012 are duly received
the relevant reading materials.

All Directors have confirmed their participating in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 March 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and
Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code and CG Report. There are
four members in the Audit Committee comprising four INEDS,
namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui
Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors and any questions of its resignation and dismissal,
review the Company's annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly reports, review the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems, discuss
the internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to provide advices and comments
thereon to the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the quarterly
and half-yearly results. The Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 has been
also reviewed by the Audit Committee and provided advice and
comments thereon.

There were 5 meetings of the Audit Committee include two
meetings with the external auditors of the Company held for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Individual attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page
30 of this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code and CG
Report. There are four members in the Nomination Committee
comprising four INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming.
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, assess
the independence of the INEDs and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and determined the
policy for the nomination of Directors.

There were 3 meetings of the Nomination Committee held for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Individual attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on
page 30 of this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code and CG
Report. There are five members in the Remuneration Committee
comprising one executive Director, namely Mr. Chui Kwong Kau,
and four INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan
Yun Hing, Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined
the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors and
assessed performance of executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee adopted a model in the Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the CG Code and CG Report, the Remuneration Committee
determines, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

There were 4 meetings of the Remuneration Committee held for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Individual attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table
on page 30 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings
and its respective committees meetings, and general meetings

ESHFERCE

TRENEEFHE_T—=F=A=+—RHIt
FEHFREFECERMERAZRBRERUR

during the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the following & B K& 7 z08%=515
table:
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEEERY REERHEZNY
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual Extraordinary

Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting

EEg® EKEEE REZEE  FHzEe RREEF R4
Bz EE R R S - g
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Hongging (Note 1) EEERE W) oM NATER  NATER  NATER  NATEE  NATER
Mr. LU Zhigiang BERE 90 NATERE O NATEE  NATER 01 01
Mr. Cai Da BEgh 39/40 N/ATER N/A &R N/ATER 0/1 0/1
Mr. Chu Hon Pong RERLE /0  NATER  NATER  NATER 0/1 0/1
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERRAE 40040 NATER  NATER 4/ 17 1"
Mr. Lam Wing Tai (Note 2) WKEEE (H#2) 1929 NATER  NATER  NATER 0/1 0
Ms. Li Mei (Note 3) iRt (Hit3) B9 NATER O NATER  NATER  NATER 01
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo (Note 1) WXL (HE1) 9 NATEE  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Independent BUFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FERE 27/40 5/5 33 4/ 0/1 0/1
Mr. Chan Yun Hing (Note 3) BOBE L (M 3) 15/19 3/3 2/2 22 NATER 0/1
Mr. Gui Qiangfang (Note 3) ERF LA (W3 15/19 33 212 212 N/A TER 0/1
Mr. Hung Yat Ming (Note 4) SEABLE (HE4) 1n N/A T E N/A TR N/ATER N/ATER N/A TE
Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Note 5) BERLE (IS 12121 22 1" 202 "o NATER
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Note 5) EEERT (M5 12/21 2/2 111 212 1 NATER
Notes: HfaE -

1. appointed on 1 December 2012;

2. resigned on 1 December 2012;

3. appointed on 21 September 2012;

4. appointed on 28 March 2013; and

5. resigned on 21 September 2012.

1. R-E——F+-F—BHEZIT:
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Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code and CG Report,
the Chairman should attend the annual general meeting.
However, Mr. Chu Hon Pong (resigned as the Chairman on
30 November 2012) and Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, being the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17
August 2012 due to his other prior engagement. Mr. Chu invited
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, the executive Director to chair and answer
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
external auditors of the Company attended the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,
the accounting policies and auditors” independence.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code and CG Report,
all non-executive Directors should attend general meetings.
However, certain non-executive Directors were unable to attend
the general meetings due to their other prior engagements.
Details of attendance of the general meetings are set out in the
above table.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China") as the independent
auditors of the Company and proposed to re-appoint Pan-China
as the independent auditors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”").

As at 31 March 2013, the fee payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Company are as follows:

REBEEXEATAREEEAREFEI21KTR
BX TREERHERRBFRE - A REH
FEMR-_FT——F+—-A=1THBEEZR) UK
ENEZES REZEGNFMZEEIREE
ERERELEFEMEHES MBEELELRT
RIB-——FNAAT+EEETZRRAFKS -
RELEBFATESTEAREETIRARTME
BEARE  YRE EEMERRH - ARFRIMNERH
BB FEARBRRBEFAES - AEERBES
TE REZBMHEREAR - @ BERNKL
BB 7 1 2 12 -

REBELEEATAREEERREFEALTIETRI
BX 2RIFRTEERLEERRAS - A
ETHRATESFAFABEMEGHES MEXL
FERRRE - AEBRRAREGHFLEZFRERN
Ex-

R BTN &

ERZBECRIRRE(BR) EFMEHMER
REA([RRDIESARABILZHBM 2RI - I
EENEEAATARRBEFA S ((RRBFAE])
LB R R RSB AZ B o

RIEB—=F=ZA=+—H $ARFZBAERE
Rz BEZNIFERRBRARRI N 2MEmT

Amount
Type of services REEE ot}
Audit services EiZ RS HK$550,000 % 7T
Non-audit services IEFE LIRS HK$350,000 7 7T,
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ka Bong was the Company Secretary from 4 October
2011 to 28 February 2013. During his employment, the primary
corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Chui Kwong
Kau, the executive Director.

Mr. Lam Tze Chung (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary with effect from 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. He has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website
after each general meeting.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency through the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend
general meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to
the Board directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant
committees are also available to answer the questions in the
general meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there are no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF THE
ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules. The responsibility of the
auditors is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the Group's system of internal control.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems and reported its
findings and made recommendations to the Board.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness
and adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control. The Board also satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) the sale of healthcare products; (i) the
sale of electronic components and cotton yarn; (iii) the funeral and
related businesses; and (iv) the stem cell technology business. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on pages 45 to 46 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
page 148 of this report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves and distributable reserves
of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements and consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company'’s share capital and share options are set
out in Notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of this report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements of this report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 1 December 2012)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cai Da
Mr. Chu Hon Pong
(resigned as the Chairman on 1 December 2012)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Mr. Lam Wing Tai
(resigned on 1 December 2012)
Ms. Li Mei
(appointed on 21 September 2012)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 December 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
Mr. Chan Yun Hing

(appointed on 21 September 2012)
Mr. Gui Qiangfang

(appointed on 21 September 2012)
Mr. Hung Yat Ming

(appointed on 28 March 2013)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

(resigned on 21 September 2012)
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

(resigned on 21 September 2012)

In accordance with the Article 86(3) of the Articles, Ms. Lam
Kuo, Mr. Jiang Hongging, Ms. Li Mei, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr.
Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming shall hold office until the
AGM. They are subject to re-election and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Chu Hon
Pong and Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, being one-third of the
Directors will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence during the
year in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
all INEDs are still being considered to be independent.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Profile details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 17 to 22 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings by the
Directors as referred to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES
Details of the share options schemes are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, and based on the public records
filed on the website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by
the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company) in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly,
to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, were as

FERR

RIE—=F=ZA=+—B REBEFEREAQFE
ZITHRABMA - WRIE EERBRPIELE 2 AF
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HFRHBEGRAFEBGATFEZ B o Em i
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follows:
Approximate
Total Number Percentage of
Number of of Shares and the Company’s
Name of Substantial Number of Underlying Underlying Issued Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Held Shares Held Shares Held Capital
FERHAR ERARTET
TERRHE BB 54 FERAHE FRERRG A HBRHAY RABHNBEDLL
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(Hfzt1) (Hizt5)
Dr. Lin Interest of controlled 141,582,801 (L) 102,625,600 (L) 244,208,401 (1)
MEL corporation (Note 2) (Note 1)
REEERER (Mz2) (Frzx1)
40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
Interest of spouse 36,717,660 (L) 24,190,320 (1) 60,907,980 (L)
[ 3 (Note 3) (Note 1)
(Hfz£3) (Brzx1)
6,084,000 (S) - 6,084,000 (S)
(Note 3)
(Hfz£3)
305,116,381 (L) 9.27 (L)
46,084,000 (5) 1.40 ()
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Approximate
Total Number Percentage of
Number of of Shares and the Company’s
Name of Substantial Number of Underlying Underlying Issued Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Held Shares Held Shares Held Capital
FrER5 R EARARATET
TERRHEER 5 FERAHE FRERRGEE HERRAAH RABHNBEALL
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(Hfzt1) (#it5)
Ms. Lin Liuyin ("Ms. Lin") Beneficial owner 23,086,680 (L) - 23,086,680 (L)
Wizt ((Hhzt]) EmBEA 6,084,000 (5) - 6,084,000 (5)
Interest of controlled 13,630,980 (L) 24,190,320 (L) 37,821,300 (L)
corporation (Note 1)
REEERER (Frzx1)
Interest of spouse 244,208,401 (L) - 244,208,401 (L)
[SEE (Note 4)
(Hist4)
40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
(Note 4)
(Hist4)
305,116,381 (L) 9.27 (L)
46,084,000 (5) 1.40 ()
Stem Cells Anti-Aging Beneficial owner 190,233,322 (1) - 190,233,322 (1)
Medicine Technologies E# %A A 40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
Holdings Limited Interest of controlled - 146,608,000 (L) 146,608,000 (L)
(“Stem Cells") corporation (Note 1)
BN REES B (Hz1)
RAERBR AR
(T&4pe])
336,841,322 (L) 1023 (1)
40,000,000 (S) 122 (S)
Solar Might Investments  Beneficial owner 239,074,333 (L) - 239,074,333 (L)
Limited ("Solar Might") Ez5# A A
BEEEBR AT Interest of controlled - 91,380,667 (L) 91,380,667 (L)
(BR)) corporation (Note 1)
LA R (Frzx1)
330,455,000 (L) 10.04 ()
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Approximate
Total Number Percentage of
Number of of Shares and the Company’s
Name of Substantial Number of Underlying Underlying Issued Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Held Shares Held Shares Held Capital
FERHAR EARARTET
TERRHE BB 51 FERAHE FRERRG A HERAAH RAGAEI L
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(Brzx1) (#13£5)
Mr. Deng Interest of controlled 239,074,333 (L) 91,380,667 (L) 330,455,000 (L) 1004 (1)
15 corporation (Note 1)
REEERER (M)
Add Talent Beneficial owner - 249,333,333 (1) 249,333,333 (1) 7.57 (1)
e ExBEA
(L) denotes Long Position L) EL B
(S) denotes Short Position S) KEXAE
Notes: Wit -

1.

These underlying shares under this column were Consideration
Shares, to be allotted and issued by the Company to Add Talent
or its nominees upon fulfillment of the terms and conditions of the
Agreement. Add Talent was owned as to approximately 58.8% by
Stem Cells and approximately 36.65% by Solar Might. Stem Cells
was beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Lin and 16.5% by Ms. Lin.
Solar Might was wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng. Details
of the Consideration Shares and the shareholding structure of Add
Talent were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 4
September 2012, 6 September 2012, 11 September 2012 and 18
September 2012.

1.

EETEAR AR (D ARERD - BRBEZIER
NGB ERBEBRA RN RE R BT THERHENA
BN o EERBMB LGS R A 458.8% &
#)36.65% > HEAMBME L RMLZ LD EUEE%
B70% K% 165%Ewm - R AN TELEER

B BENREBERMIIGEMERE S ﬁé$
AIHBMA-T——FhLAWB - —T—=—F 1A
ANEZE—ZFNA+—BERZZE—ZF1A
TNHZAEANEE -

2. These shares were registered in the name of Stem Cells whichwas 2. ZERMDUMNE LB RHHEL 70%ER 2 BHB 2
beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Lin. Under the SFO, Dr. Lin was %%iﬁi BIEFES LBEGD - METHR A
deemed to be interested in these shares held by Stem Cells. RZEBRMABATRERD P A #EES -

3. These shares were registered in the name of Ms. Lin who is 3. ZERMUNELZREEBMRLLt 2 GEZL R
the spouse of Dr. Lin. Under the SFO, Dr. Lin was deemed to be BFEEFLHEERN  ME TR ANRZEMZ L
interested in these Shares held by Ms. Lin. Pkl P A = o

4. These shares were registered in the name of Stem Cells whichwas 4. ZERD AL + 2 BEEMIE T E 25 B 70% 1
beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Lin who is the spouse of Ms. HZBERAEETRL - RIBES R EESG -
Lin. Under the SFO, Ms. Lin was deemed to be interested in these MEZ LR BN ZER MR GD R B s -
shares held by Stem Cells.

5. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,291,952,805 shares 5. B KRR -_ZEZ—=F=ZA=+—B2EH
as at 31 March 2013. [ 3,291,952,805 & -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, and
based on the public records filed on the website of the Stock
Exchange and records kept by the Company, no other person or
corporation had interest in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which would be recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or who will
be, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 75.72% of the Group's total purchases and the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 44.14%
of the Group's total purchases. Aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers were approximately 41.46%
of the Group's sales while the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 19.91% of the Group's sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the issued capital of the Company) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's major suppliers and customers for the year ended 31
March 2013.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors, substantial
shareholders, and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which causes
or may cause a significant competition with the business of the
Group.

D

4\

BREXBEEIN R-F—=F=A=+—8"
AREZRARAREBITRABMRA - WRELE
B X P 2 AR M AR BIFE 2 ik -
BHMATIOEBNAR R B BB
BEARBESRBMERIIEXVEF 2R3 &
BEXAARBEBERCARNRRAREES LT
GOIE3BIERFEZE LM RS HEEX
R A M SR A —IER TRAKE IR
HM B AR 2R ARE LIRE 2 E M ERIBA
TEI{E 5% A F#Eas ©

BE - hEIEERRS

REBEFE - ARAREEAHEARGEEE -
BRIk SRR R EMARD

FEEFRMER

REAFERN  AEBRAAHEERLAIEEEES
BAA75.72% @ MAREZAHEFGAREEAE
HEEAA414% - AEBRARP 2 B HEE LA
SEEERELNL.46%  MAEEHZREPIHEARE
B IHEREAY 19.91% ©

HE_Z-—=ZFZA=-+—HLFE {TESH-
HWEZHEALTHKAMNBR GRESAEEAR
AIEBITIRASN A EEH) WENAEE T BHE
BRBEFTHEAMMERER -

BFEERD

R-ZFB—=F=ZA=+—H 8EF TEBR
MREEEBZBMEBEAL(EERAZER EHHRA
MERENLAIEHAKRERTEREABRF 2
X RAEHER -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicity available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 23 to
33 in this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013 have been audited by the auditors of the Company,
Pan-China, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Pan-China as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013

REARBFRE
READAMGAHENRREEMA - RRE
BIZAR ERBIRE IR ARE N 2 REERT
TEH - ARFREREARRIHBRE -

¥ B

BE_ T =F-A=1t"RHLFEZKEEYE
BREBARRRBEIRREZ - REHE®R
HRFEERLMBERNBRRBFASRIER - &
BREASARRBZEE ZRBRBNEFEF K
g LRS-

EEREM
BEREGNERMEEERAF
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EEE
BB —_T—=FHA-1++tH
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Independent Auditors’ Report
8 M A% B H

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
("the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

BEBEDNERMEEARATF
B B 3R
(RESHBIMA L ERAF])

AEMME B ELSE U EFREBE SRS
SEBERAR ((EAR]) REMBAR (5HE
BEE]) 2 EAMBRE  BER-E—=F=
B=+—B2HARATNMBHRRE - REEZ
ALFEZRAZEKRRR  BABREDRR
HABeRER URTIBEHBABEREA
RIBER -

ESHRSUBBRR2ER

BERRERARERBETEGHMASRM2E
BB R s SR R BB LD BRG] 2 R BT e
REMAFZEEHHHRE REREFA/L
BZNEES  BEERBEEAVBRR LTS
HIREAHERRA (TRAMGFRERMELE) ©

BRI 2 BAE

AEBED 2 EE T RE AL E L T2 AR
HESHRAVBHBREREL  LRAZEKRE
B IR - BRI ASNA IR o5 B L A B 1) o AR BRET
BIRERENDATTEMALARERE LE
f£o

AZBMRIEB LG ASEM 2 EEZE
APETTEZ T - WHEERERAZEENETE
R WEHEI FETERTHE  NAERES
ERAMBHRREE N FEEAERFEREML

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 o 4£#f 43



Independent Auditors’ Report
B BET RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group'’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

20/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.AR., China

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013

Tsang Chiu Keung
Practising Certificate Number P04968
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Consolidated Statement of Comp hensnve Income
medEWEE

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000

b5 FERT FHET

TURNOVER SE 201 6(a) 86,113 71,727

COST OF SALES HERAR (48,074) (43,495)

GROSS PROFIT EF 38,039 28,232
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF HELD-FOR- HEREEERE 2 WE

TRADING INVESTMENTS 590 311
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON HELD-FOR- BEBSEREZATLEEE

TRADING INVESTMENTS 7,319 5,866
IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER RECEIVABLES  H th fiE Uk 2k 18 B {8 8¢ ]

WRITTEN BACK 247 337
OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME Hinl B R WA EEE 6(b) 7,504 828
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING THREMEERX

EXPENSES (78,432) (36,874)
FINANCE COSTS BKE R 7 (2,582) (1,171)
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON CONTINGENT FERSRARE>

CONSIDERATION PAYABLE AFEEH 31 17,453 -
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL BERE 16 (28,205) -
LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR- HET{HESERE 2 EIE

SALE INVESTMENTS = (19,881)
IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER RECEIVABLES  H {th & Wk 2k B R (B (3,882) (8,915)
LOSS BEFORE TAX KRB ATEE 8 (41,949) (31,267)
INCOME TAX R8s 9 (1,177) (758)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEIE (43,126) (32,025)
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Consolidated Statement of Compr’
medEWEE

For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—Eg—= T F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#ExT FHET
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: Htt2ER s :
Exchange difference arising on MEBIINEBEEZER
translation of foreign operations =5 646 4,686
Reclassification for cumulative fair value ZE#H B HE R HIEIRE
loss attributable to disposal of (R R AT EEE
available-for-sale investments - 1,026
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEERXHNSEHE
FOR THE YEAR (42,480) (26,313)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEaEE
— owners of the Company — RRFHEB A (35,614) (28,448)
— non-controlling interests — FEiER R (7,512) (3,577)
(43,126) (32,025)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PEAE IS4
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
— owners of the Company — XRFHEB A (35,176) (24,947)
— non-controlling interests — JEEAR (7,304) (1,366)
(42,480) (26,313)
Loss per share: BREE 12
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARCEM) (1.19) (1.25)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 58 OBI) (1.04) (1.23)
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Consolidated Statement of Flnan aI Position' '

e BRIR &

Asat31March2013 R=F—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKRERE 15 128,953 112,139
Goodwill GRS 16 178,718 8,864
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE 18 929 925
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEELTE 308,600 121,928
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 19 47,641 46,949
Trade and other receivables FEMAZBE % N EH i fE UG B 21 242,945 172,569
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 22 62,876 43,258
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTEE 23 29,157 108,931
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS REBEEHATE 382,619 371,707
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Bank borrowing RITEE 24 35,910 18,504
Trade and other payables AR SR N E b B A5 F0AR 26 138,951 141,080
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEEEE 174,861 159,584
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 207,758 212,123
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSAAE 31 52,360 -
NET ASSETS EEFHE 463,998 334,051
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #iE
Share capital [N 28 131,678 99,712
Reserves E= 30 297,041 178,271
Equity attributable to the owners NARIHA AE(EERS
of the Company 428,719 277,983
Non-controlling interests IRV = 35,279 56,068
TOTAL EQUITY A 463,998 334,051

Lu Zhigiang

E5HE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFRITIEARE,

Chiu Kwong Kau

Executive Director

HITEF
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Asat31March2013 R=F—=F=A=+—H

—

Statement of Financial Position

2013 2012
—E—= —T——4F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENREE 15 82 1,077
Investment in subsidiaries RBRRZIEE 17 170,780 780
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEELTE 170,862 1,857

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries eI B 2 B3R IE 20 154,423 59,402
Trade and other receivables JE U B TR Kz EL fth JE U 1B 21 94,195 60,831
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 22 62,876 43,258
Cash and bank balances We MIRTTES 23 6,834 89,426
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MEEEHAEE 318,328 252,917
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTMT B A RIFIE 25 743 763
Trade and other payables FETBR TN N H fih FE S 1B 26 876 541
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEEE 1,619 1,304
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 316,709 251,613

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSAAE 31 52,360 -
NET ASSETS EEFHE 435,211 253,470

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A R
Share capital iz 28 131,678 99,712
Reserves B 30 303,533 153,758
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 435,211 253,470

Lu Zhigiang

Exa

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFRITIHARE

Chui Kwong Kau
Executive Director
HITEFE
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consolidated Statement of Chanﬁ
mEERBE R

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EAAREARE
Share  Investments Non-
Share Share Special options  revaluation  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests Total
REER

BE  BROEE  BERE BRERR A BERR  ERER BE FERES ag
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TRL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TRL TEL TEL TER

At 1 April 2011 RZE——FRA-A 83,112 289,108 (39.999) 4102 (1,026) 1,560 (67,394) 269,464 57434 326,898
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (28.448) (28.448) (3577) (32,025)
Reclassification for cumulative fair -~ ENfHEHETLBEREL

value loss on disposal of avallable- 2 AFEEE

for-sale investments - - 1026 - - 102 - 1026
Exchange differencesarisingon ~ #EENEREL ERER

translation of foreign operations - - - 2475 - 2475 211 4,68
Total comprenensive income TEE2EhEEE

for the year - - 1,026 2475 (28.448) (24.947) (1,366) (26,313
Issue of ordinary shares under RERDEEETLER

share placing 16,600 11,194 - - - 2,79% - 2,19
Recognition of equity-setled BANER AR RIRG

share-based payments BEEZMT - - - - - - 5672 - 5672
At 31 March 2012 and RZE-Z§=A=t-BRk

at 1 April 2012 “5-Z%MA-A 99,712 300,302 - 4,035 (95,842) 277,983 56,068 334,051
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (35,614) (35,614) (7512) (43126)
Exchange diferences arisingon— EENEBEEVER 25

translation of foreign operations - - - 38 - 038 208 646
Total comprehensive income TER2ENEER

for the year - - - 43 (35,614) (35,176) (7,300) (42,480)
Issue of ordinary shares nder RERAEERALER

share placing 19940 76,165 - - - 9,105 - 96,105
Issue of ordinary shares for SMENBLRRTLAR

acquisition of subsidiaries 12,026 72110 - - - 84,13 - 84,13
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - - - (13485) (13489)
Recognition of equity-settied BANERREERIRG

share-based payments AERZRH - - - 5671 - - - 5671 - 5671
At 31 March 2013 W-8-=£ZB=1-R 131,678 448,571 (39,998) 15,445 - 4473 (131,456) 428,719 35,279 463,998
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Fl
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

TN

S

2013 2012
—E-= —ECF
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE F#&xT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REREEBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR AT E 1B (41,949) (31,267)
Adjustments for: Bt T3S IE L A
Interest expenses FEFZ 2,582 1171
Interest income A BHA (7,091) (754)
Dividend income g EWA = (52)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEN
equipment Bl i 2,110 -
Impairment of goodwill EESERIE 16 28,205 -
Fair value change on contingent B SAREZ
consideration payable NEEE) 31 (17,453) -
Impairment losses of other receivables Hin U za 2
FEEE 3,882 8,915
Impairment of other receivables Hth fe e sIRR B 2
written back (247) (337)
Amortization of leasehold land THE s 4 4
Depreciation of property, VI BB KRBT E
plant and equipment 10,891 8,137
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEREEERE
investments Z Uz (590) 311
Fair value change on held-for-trading BEEEREZAYE
investments e (7,319) (5,866)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHERE
investments 2 B8 = 19,831
Equity-settled share-based payments LAREZE 7 SAS B N A
M B AR 2 SR 5,671 5,672
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in &8 & & # BT 2 £
working capital (E518),/ %5 (21,304) 5,193
Increase in inventories FEEN (692) (5,674)
Increase in trade and other receivables JE L B 7k R L th i U R TS
0 (67,496) (66,463)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEAT R FX I EL A B 3R IE
other payables CRiA),/ s (54,587) 39,046
Net cash used in operations EIBFTRER S FRE (144,079) (27,898)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB (319) (292)
Net cash used in operating activities A TSRS 558 (144,398) (28,190)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash

GEHTRER

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

f
{
B |
[

OWS

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES XREBEREZEZ2HRERE
Interest received B U FI B 7,091 754
Dividend income fi% U A - 52
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE W% - ME L& E (13,167) (5,001)
Purchase of held-for-trading investments B EH{EEEIRE (13,333) (39,836)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments % & ] (L4 &R & - (5,427)
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading  HE#{EE R E S
investments HIE 1,624 2,756
Proceeds from disposal of available- HERHIEEIREME
for-sale investments A - 43,394
Net cash outflow on acquisition WEEH B R R ZIRE R
of subsidiaries HER 31 (28,678) -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMERS F58 (46,463) (3,308)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES KBRS IS 2EHESRE
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 2£17 3% i@A%FT15 PUE F 58 96,105 27,794
Proceeds from bank borrowing IRITEEMSHKIA 35,675 13,755
Repayment of bank borrowing ERIBITEE (18,452) -
Interest paid EAFIE (2,582) (1,171)
Net cash generated from financing BEEBSREFE
activities 110,746 40,378
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND HERREZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA),/ S5 (80,115) 8,880
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FONZzREeREASZEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 108,931 99,961
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes — NEEREE 2 & 341 90
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRzZEERREEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 29,157 108,931
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBEEENDIT
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHEH 29,157 108,931
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is situated
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, British West Indies.
The principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated
at Unit 2704, 27/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) the sale of healthcare
products; (i) the sale of electronic components and cotton
yarn; (iii) funeral and related business; and (iv) the stem cell
technology business.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new and revised Standards, Amendments
and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2012.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

1\

TEER
AEBEBREBRMEEGR AR ([ARF])
RERASHEARNE (KIEF]) RS/ ST
ML BEREBR AR - ERONE S
ERGFABRAT (A BIZER A
FR])) £ o AARFEMPESEEALR Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies « KARIEB A 2 E2EEME
MREBTHEBEF 168200/ EEHLARE
27122704 E -

FAMBHRERARRARNEEEBTIR

7

AR B/REERAR - KRB REHMEA
A(SEIAER D 2T EXZBROEER
fEEm: (VHEETEMFRBY  (i)EZE
NABRAZTS © K (v) AR 575 -

FERFTR] KRBT B RMBRE
ZA([EHRMBREED D)

RAFER  AEBERERNATHEES
A (EEGAMAE )RR _-F
——FHUA— A RRABZ G BELER
ZHET MAERT RN - BR] R B ([FrRT &%
RIEFIRBUBRELEA]) -

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

BB BIREERE 198 (BETA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

S T T PIC TS
HKAS 12 (Amendment)
EBEHRRIE 125 (BHTA)

B E = IR X BBk BN E 2 B E B HR
Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets
B —EEMBEE

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
EERIIR - W EIEREE E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior accounting years.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

2.

H
| |
[

FERFTR] R R IBFT B RM B | E
ZA(EBUBREER D @

FER ML ERR] RRERT BB MBI E LR H
AEE B A BTG F R M BRI IR
MW EERTE -

AEEIEEFEA NI 2 BME R RER
ZHTR] RAIERT LR - BT Rk o

HKFRSS (Amendments)

BRMBMELER (BFTA)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB BHRELERZE 75 (IEF] )

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BBV BREEREIRRBBUE
EAERIZE 75 (BRI A)

HKFRS 9
BB RS RIS W
HKFRS 10
BAMBHSEUE 105
HKFRS 11
BAMBWESEUNE 1R
HKFRS 12

BB BHRELEAZE 1257

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HEEV R EERFE 105 - BT
HEERE 115 R BB SRS
F125% (IBFT )

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

BERBHRELERE 105 - BENB
WEERE 1R REBEETEL
27 % (IBFT A%)

HKFRS 13

BB BHRELEAZE 1357

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BERBSFERE 19 (BT A)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

EBGRTERE 195 (ZE——F1E37])

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

BEGFERE 27 (ZF——F&F])

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle except for
HKAS1(Amendments)?

AR HRELEN —_SENFE_T——FRB FENE
(BB ERE 15 (BETA) BRI @

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

BE— UUBEEREVEAE?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®

BBMBHMEERNE W 26l £ HH RBEHEE®

Financial Instruments®

g TH®

Consolidated Financial Statements?

A BHRER

Joint Arrangements?

EELHEe

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®

HEEER KRR

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements Disclosure of
Interests and Other Entities: Transitional Guidance®

RAENBHRE  BMATHEREMEBES 2B - BEESIY

Investment Entities®

(€]

RE

i
i

\;

Fair Value Measurement?

AFEHED

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income!”
Hit 2EWIBR 250

Employee Benefits®

EEREH @

Separate Financial Statements®?

B Rk @
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERFIIRRIETEBMBERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZA(HFBMEREER D @)
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures®

B ERE 28R (ZT——FE5]) KREBEATREEDRHE

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

BB ERIE 29 (IBFTA) 23— UK EEREVHBAGEY

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine?

BE (BRI BREREZES) —2E BREEERERZFEKE

% 205%

M Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July M R-E——FtA—HH BB ZFE
2012. HAR AR -

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January @ RZE—=ZF—B—Hk 2 ERABZFE
2013. HARAAE R -

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ® R-ZZE—NMF—-—A—Bsk2BRABZFE
2014. AR AR -

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January W RIE-RAF-A-HICERBZEE
2015. AR AR -

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase R-EBEFNF+— A EGZEENBERES

1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 £RFIRATEMREAGFTERZE 395

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This [T : ERATE| 22HEEEE—ME

phase focuses on the classification and measurement of BREIRE - WERERNUGEES AN

financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into =  ERBEEEMKEE 258 MBF

four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as BEEZANR S RERE - 1R ANk

subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair NEEE DB EEE - ﬁﬁ#&?@{l EEIJ Nia

value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for B F& & EE /A:u{aﬂ&g;gﬁ%jg/\%% 2R

managing the financial assets and the contractual cash BEAEENAMEEREER ;lEéi;inZlK}x

flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains BEE - HEBBLIEREI95ETE » 1

and losses will be recognized in profit or loss except for ZAEERE RGN BEENBRGTE o

those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognize the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with requirements of HKAS 39.
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principals of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the
Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option. For these fair value
option liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in other comprehensive income. The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit
or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in
respect of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the fair value option are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirely.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 April 2015.

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

2.

FERFTR] R R IBFT B RM B | E
ZA(EBUBREER D @

RZZE—ZTF+—H BAEHMAGH
i‘%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%?ﬂ‘%#ﬁ%ﬁ—?” B 95k 2 31
RE([FGHRE]D) - RBEBMISRELERE
VSR A B A G ERIE R IMITEUEER

HM%I/E\ZJ?@J RESDHIEREEZ T
BR G ERIE0N - YT EERAFE
BiEE fE%‘z:z AFERFABS 2B R EFD

2 hREATEERAENS  BEE
REggmELZAREAFELEHHE - &
ANEMEEREES) - HBRATFEZSHY
REBE@mE - RIFNEpEEKRE2IAE
EERR A THEES  SELRBAER
SETHEEC - AT - REHEREL TRE
BEMARHEERE 2 BEF0RE MV HER
BHY -

%Ei%,ﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁ”%"?%EE*%HXR%E?%
SETERIZE 395 - TREUAT - BB EAE
AFEVREBE P A MM BEEREZ
EEIEBER - AREFENN _T-1FM0
A—BERABBYHRELENE N

R BHREERNE 10T BB SR
F 275 [4R36 MBI W BERER ] B @RES

BUMBBRZRENRETE(FREERE
g)-FNR2H[HE —BFRENEL]-F

B ERE LR E 10585 A B — 1 HIE
NEERIREHRES TUGEAARK M
’i%@'JE&E*ﬁfﬁﬁﬁf%Eﬁ%T %‘th&i&,\

H% o 2EBETRANSLEFETEHE
ﬁZH@%%vM&E%%ﬁ%@%Q@ﬁ
SEZBS -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard
does not change the circumstances in which the Group
is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSS.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income. Items that could
be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point
in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement)
would be presented separately from items which will never
be reclassified.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised Standards, Amendments or
Interpretations will have no material impact on consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

2.

a4

FERFTR] R BT B RMBRE
ZA(TEBUBREER D @

EEMBHREERNE 2R ARERTE - EF
REMBAR  BaRH BMERARR /X
RFERBERTHARD ZER - — &M
5 AAMBHREENFE 12K WERER
RITERERER -

BEMBRESERNE13FRANE BN
HEENZ R FERRFHEFEE - HKRE
AR L IRBERE - X ERL B E
SEAFRAFHEZER  HERREEGBE
MR E AR E A A BRI HE
RtEsl

BEAGREME 1R (EFI ) EREEME
EW 2N ZIEE DA o TEARREAER (P
WBUEER G ER) AT EH OB E B (X
RIBZBHER) BB BETNFERDE
ZHEBDFRZ -

AAREEEY - EAEMIR] REERT
A - BRI SR BRSNS HiR A M RREK
ERERTE -

o

mREXE
AERAMBRRDRIBEMEERB BN

SRA(TFEMBREEN ] BHEEE
SRR G E M 2 A E R 8 R E B B S
HEA - BEEAEN(FEGTER D K
@) FEBREFRAREERBGA
ZHRERERE - ZFHEMBEHRERMET
BEEMERXSMARLDFBIERZES LTR
Al Z @R BMEIRT -
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on managements’ best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the profit
or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance (effective
from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

3.

IRBLEXE ()
RELE A BTSSR P R 5 B ELE B AR
% METRATEHE MBI AR -

BRET  MEERAMHEHRREERAER
et R - BEZEFRRDHRIEE IE%T
BIOTEMHRITE 2 RERMRHEEL -
FRERZRKEBRINZFMET - iﬁ&?m
REHEREE M B - SRR LAY
FAEMBERRBEAENMESHE -

FESHEER

(@) #HRERBEE%E
BANBREBEARARIEART
27 BRE(EMBAR) 2 BSHE -
A 2 TﬁﬁimMaﬁZM%&w
SHE - AREEE B R A 25 - B
BB SIE -

RERKBREE ZHERFZHWA
NP Al BEAERABREREEDY
EEMBHIERERBRME) A
B - MEARZEKEARRBR
RARHAANRIERED - AES
UM R R R B AER(B =T —
TE-A—BRER) -

WEFE  SaEsiBAmMEHRE
EHAE  BEESTRRERKE
HK B RARFAEREER 2 -

FESEARARRIEZRS « &t I
ARRX N ERE R B R -

Eé,ﬁf’:\.ﬁﬁ REVEEFRZIFERE
SREARE RO FAZEY
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

4. FESTBER@®
(@) HEREEE#E)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Changes in the Groups ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognizes the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognizes
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSS). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

E AT SFUES

TEEBRBEEMBLARZHEERESR
BE
AEERMBRAR A EEE 2
W REHAREE R EELEHHER A
ZIEEIRE - BgIERRRZ H AR -
REBE 7 #EmEIEERER 2 REE
BT AFE - RERERME A R4
HiER 88  FrRER CHEE
HEMKEWREATFERERZE
MZRE HEERNERER  LHB
RARBEBA °

MASEEREHEMB AR 2 s
HOMKREZESES A - ZEEmER
/EEE’EWEZW% REE(RETHNE
B)REE  (VRAKEEHEZB - B
SHRER BT B A AT I f e (B
%ﬁﬁtiﬁﬂﬂz ST FE(R 4B 2B ) ¢
(i) EREWARE R FEEFERRS
EmAFEEMN  MAAEEEZRERA
EBEEGIERANERARE - WHE
REIZ BENREHSEHRRAFET
R MAEBZFEBEEREMEZER
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NEEASEEEELERBEEEM
ARBIEF I EEBRIREREER
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Business combinations

4. FESTBER@®
(b) K&/

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

J deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

WEXBRABBEAR - XBE6
R ERRVFEFE  MarES
ARAREMBREECWERSA
FE AEERKRBESRATES AK
EZRBERAKRERIBEBERIE
BT EIT 2 AR 2 A - B
HEER-RRELREREMER

RUEE B H - PR iE m] BB & & P
EEREDNRATERR  EATE
SLERSN -

e EEMBEENARKRERREF
R ZHEBEBEEREED HIRE
BETERE 2R BN &
BB ERIE195EEREH ]
HERNMETE R

o RBEBMBIMEERE SR
FHEZHRBEERERIL
BEBDERFIFLEZEE

(R EAER) AL E -

.

BENEEAE  FERERNK
BUHREBEHESBERRBINERAR
BURBAERZ A FE(IE) 242
A R AT U T BRI B B K R R
BERBBRAMFEZZRHAE -
B (RR - PTURE Rl BRI & A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Business combinations (continued)

W\

4. FESTBER@®
(b) ¥BE6F@)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in HKFRS.

Where the consideration the Group transfers
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which
cannot exceed one year from acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Business combinations (continued)

(c)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or 10ss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

The policy described above is applied to all business
combinations that take place on or after 1 January
2010.

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

62

(c)

(d)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Subsidiary (continued)

Investment in subsidiaries is included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment 10ss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Revenue recognition
Revenue, which is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables, is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(f)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Sales income is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed,;

Services fee income is recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the service;

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition;

Income arising from sales of financial
instruments is recognised on the completion of
transfer of risks and rewards to the transferee;
and

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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64

(f)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
S0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(8)

Leases (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments" in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group
entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each entity are expressed in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company, and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Foreign currencies (continued)
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(8) & (a)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss for the period.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. For such non-monetary items,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are expressed in Hong Kong
dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

E AT SFUES

REHEEEB UV B®RMERE - UZE
BINGEEB NN ZEE(INE) EITZ
R EXSBHEAEEALR-
REREBRRK - INEFIBE 2 EHEIR
B iRmE R BRERENRE o
BATFEY BRI ASNE DB 2 IEE
HE - DIREEHEAVFEZEAZER
EXBEMME - MELHAGTEIIA
SNEBFIE 2 IFEBIBRT T EMRKRE

AEEEREARENHREERER
PR EE AR TE 2 BN % MR At8 -
AEMRBREERIFEARZIFERR
B PTE AL IE H 2 BN AR AR
\ﬁli%ﬂﬁl I s sk B IRE N

SR IFEBIRE MEE Z E R
She MABRAFERIERMS » W
HE R ZER AR D TE N
FER.

MEIGAMBREAMS - AREE
SNEF 2 BERBEHRBEHRE
FREXET2Y - WA KIAR
TR FHERRE - BRIFMAE
E YNNI EAﬁt‘IESRT - Rl &R A

RZEAZERME - FIELERZ
%ﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁ)ﬁfﬁﬁtiﬁw SHER - WK
BERFEBRT AES - HEBINER
B ARREBAREZEBRER
RERFTCEREZBOENHNEER

S o
I

EBRAT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen S

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(8)

(h)

(i)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are included in the translation
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of
its employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

68

0)

@

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Contributions are recognized as an expenses in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group's obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognized
until the time of leave.

Share-based payment benefits

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 4(s)
i1).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

NN

| Statements

4. FESTBER@®

()

BE@®E)
BIEBENRG AN BERRNEER
B2 AR E S R R R TR
FEMEPERRELA & R 2 =R - BT
HEaE - RAFEERN L=
MR - TR B IE A B A FE R B s
Al PRI S AT R S 2 B IR R o
MEEEERN SRR LR
SRR T2 2 5 (BRI
CHMEERABELEREZE - 8
DEEERABT TR -

KRB RARREMELRRHERE
B DEIA/ELEHERAG  HEAK
BARgNEHERER  ERD  BY
REBAIETENA RKRER 2B
SERSN - AR AR EEE Y
FEBMELEEVAEEENEGA
A RABARTENAS AER R
ZN&EBT TR ARSBERHN
A Rk A -

ERLHEAE 2 BEEN SRR
B R g R B RB
FIT BURE 2 D A 2 R T
FUARA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 o 4£#f 69

v



Notes to the Consolidated Flnanma Stétements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred assets
and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets or liabilities.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

70

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land

Over the lease term

)

(k)

HE T I HEA

Buildings

’F

Leasehold improvements 5%—10% per annum
HEEE HF 5% % 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-33"/3% per annum
Fh - HERF FF15% £ 33'/:%
Motor vehicles 10%—-25% per annum
M FF 10% = 25%

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Property, plant and equipment

()

(continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of relevant
lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit
or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee
and overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets are
completed and ready for use, the carrying amount of
the assets will be reclassified to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as set out above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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(m)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group with finite useful lives are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Period
and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives
as set out above.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
intangible assets are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Impairment of tangible and intangible

4. FESTBER@®
m) BEEREFEE(BERMN 2

assets excluding goodwill (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flow have not
been adjusted.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under other standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation decrease under other standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment 10ss
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
other standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment 1oss is treated as a revaluation increase
under other standard.
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HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets at “fair value through profit or
loss” (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued)
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4. FESTBER@®

(n) BI TR #®

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial assets at “fair value through profit or
loss” (FVTPL) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

4. FESTBER@®

(n) Financial instruments (continued) (n) IR

Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEREEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives A EM S EE BT IED TR
that are either designated or not classified as financial Bt ANEEABR TR EE -
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and AR EWREBESREFEE JHH&éTZ#m
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At EIE REMEER - AJHEEH
the end of each reporting period available-for-sale BEEZRATERNE A FEEHRN
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes HEamEB BRI N IREEHHE

in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is removed and recognised in profit or 10ss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(AN

4. FESTBER@®

(n) Financial instruments (continued) (n) BT A #®)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) MEEERE (&)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of B HEMBSEEMS © BERE

impairment could include: BIRABE -

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or —  BTARZSEFHIREASE
counterparty; or REE : 3k

— breach of contract, such as a default or — ERAH - PIF B AE K
delinquency in interest or principal payments; HIRm EAs #E R 15 ¢ Bk
or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will — [EIRARIREEER A E s TS
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or BH 5

— the disappearance of an active market for that —  ZUEEERBSE S m I EE
financial asset because of financial difficulties. Bmi5 e

For certain categories of financial asset, such as ETHEMNMEEE(MERER) €@

trade receivables, are assessed for impairment on an RIS (EJE(E - RN 218 v B8R E

individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for BR e EAREES T WE R IE 7 &5 -

receivables could include the Group’s past experience BHEEE TR S B o0 & HE

of collecting payments, an increase in the number of o /K E U SR IR FE 8 2 B =R ok 2N D 4% 7

delayed payments that pass the credit period, as well MRREEE S -

as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the TIRE SR AR I EEMS -

amount of the impairment is the difference between BESENEEERDELENSBKE

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value ERTERMNERELIE Z itk KIES

of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the REINEE Y EEEtE o (M EEE

financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in BEBELSERLY  mMEBERSETE

a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment LTHBERREBBRELEZEGHER

loss decreases and the decrease can be related Bl LR ER 2 BEREBRE R AL

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment WZEENBEBEREREH Z2BREET

was recognised, the previously recognised BHBMTERRBREMRERFLEZ

impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to BESHPIR o

the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at

the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed

what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o H& 4w B iTEBER A A
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued)

4. FESTBER@®

(n) BIITR @

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods. (See the accounting
policy below)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or 1oss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subseqguent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-
sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued)
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(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would not be
material, in which case they are stated at cost.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank borrowing,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiary,
amounts due to directors of subsidiaries and
amounts due to related companies of subsidiaries)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued)

4. FESTBER@®

(n) BIITR @

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets to another entity. On derecognition of a
financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable
is recognized in profit or loss.

BRATAR
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BT ZBRAT AR WS IR
HEBEITRAANK -
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BRI AU B
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EREERDRERE 2 A NEMNE
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HRNUBEERBE BRI ER
kE®ERES -8B RIBUEER
MGEE NErEBUERRM G ERE
- AEREESEDWREKRKES
FOLA B2 BB EL Ath 2 T U 25 e 2R S A
m R Bt aE B REB 28N
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

82

(0)

(p)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price
and direct expenses that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated expenses to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

E AT SFUES
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(q) Cash and cash equivalents

)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(3) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.
or

4. FESTBER@®

() RERBESEEY

()

BERRERERME R kR
SEYBH/BPOILFERS  EHR
THEH - ARAIBERERSE B
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBER@®

(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued) () BEBAL@
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the () 9% A THMTIEs - e

following conditions applies: ERREE[E A g

(1) the entity and the Group are the members (1) ZEBEASEEBR %
of the same group (which means that ZHEERR(AEERQ
each parent, subsidiary and fellow BB RR RERWE
subsidiary is related to the others); NCIE vl ko)

(2)  one entity is an associate or joint venture 2 —HERBARES BB
of another entity (or an associate or joint ENRIREELE (KIS —
venture of a member of a group of which ERAKERARIZEBEE
the other entity is a member); THRERAR ZHBERA

AETE)

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the Q) ZEEBHRRA—ZF=7H
same third party; ZEEE

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third 4 —HERBRF-FEEZ
entity and the other entity is an associate EEMLE ME—EER
of the third entity; ZEZHERZEE AT

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit (5) HMEEAASEHEARE
plan for the benefit of employees of either EHBERE  EERT
the Group or an entity related to the e ST BERL 2 B A EH 2
Group;

(6)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (6) ZEEZOFEPRALE
by a person identified in (i); or Bl 2k EE S 0k

(7) a person is identified in (i)(1) has 7)) (OMFTIEPRATHZES
significant influence over the entity or is a BEEEREFENSAZE
member of key management personnel of BAZEBEBERRICEE
the entity (or of the parent of the entity). BIEAE -

Close family members of an individual are those HEANTZ AR ATERRETREET
family members who may be expected to influence, GBI RE EZATHTZATE
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings BZEREKE ©

with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party EERKETRNAEBEA L 2 HER
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or B ZRXOHBEREBHEBALTRRS °

obligations between related parties.
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESFHBE @)

(continued)
(s) Share-based payment transactions (s) UBRHBAEEZTRRS
(i) Equity-settled share-based payment (i) UERZARNEERURGHBER

transactions

ZRRRZ

(1) Share options granted to employees (1) FEERTERE
For share options granted to employees, METREE CEREM
the fair value of services received T OEGRBZAFE
determined by reference to the fair value SEMEHBRENE D
of share options granted at the grant date AEIZ AFEETE IR
is expensed on a straight-line basis over SBEENES AT
the vesting period, with a corresponding BEMEIL hNRE S (B AR
increase in equity (share options reserve). ) o
At the end of each reporting period, the RNEBFBREH{EHAREET
Group revises its estimates of the number HY i 4R 5 B I I
of options that are expected to ultimately HHZMET - BETEH
vest. The effect of the change in estimate, FE(WMBE)NBRER
if any, is recognized in profit or loss with b 45 B % 4 R VE AR B SR
a corresponding adjustment to share o
options reserve.
At the time when the share options TR AR RS - BN AR
are exercised, the amount previously REE R R 2 RS
recognized in share options reserve will B2 maE -
be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after HEREREEBHESR
the vesting date or are still not exercised sk iA & m B BRI R & 4T
at the expiry date, the amount previously - BIBERERERE
recognized in share options reserve will MRAZRESEESRY
be transferred to retained earnings. A o

(2)  Share options granted to suppliers/ Q) A ER R R R

consultants

For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services, they measured at the fair value
of the goods or serves received. The
fair values of the goods or services are
recognized as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).

%

BB EmIREME T
HEm, BR 2 BRETD
ZHERERmEARSE 2R
FEFE - EmERBZ
RPENRERRFAX
BrIEE MR A BB
RREERERW - #
o (B ERE) CEHAR
JEFE o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

(continued)
(s) Share-based payment transactions

(continued)

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment
transactions
For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss.

(t) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

4
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2013 was approximately HK$178,718,000 (31 March
2012: HK$8,864,000). More details are given in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

5.

NN

| Statemen

BASES aT M R AT

it R AR RBBAERRALER (B
FEARER TS ARSI ARER)
S -

AEBERARKEHGFTRBRR - AFHE
AR BREE B EBRERERY
FoRAKEEN AV RFEEHEER
BEREELREAFE G RBRRRT
NEIECE

() WEzMATHRE
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E- WRERGFAEMBRSEL
BN 2 {FREE - At EAEER
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ReRmSELME  WEREAR
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

88

(ii)

(i)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group determines the impairment of its
receivables on a regular basis based on assessments
of their recoverability, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. Impairments arise where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the receivables and the amount
of impairment in the year in which such estimate
has been changed. If the financial conditions of
the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairments might be required to be
recognised.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The Group estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group performs an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of the reporting period and assesses the need for
write-down of inventories.

E AT SFUES
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(iv) Depreciation

(v)

Items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technologies
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates

Contingent consideration payable

The Group has accounted for the contingent
consideration in the acquisition of subsidiaries as
detailed in Note 31 in accordance with the provisions
of HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations. The
number of shares of the Company which would be
issued as consideration of the acquisition is subject
to the results of the acquired subsidiaries. The Group
determines the provision to be made in respect of the
contingent consideration based on the fair value of
the shares of the Company at the date of acquisition
of the subsidiaries and the directors’ best estimate
and weighted probability analysis of the future
profit of the subsidiaries. As the process requires
input of subjective assumptions, any changes to the
assumptions can materially affect the provision made.
Subsequent gain or loss in fair value is recognised
in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2013, total provision
made in respect of contingent consideration by the
Group amounted to HK$52,360,000 (2012: Nil) and
was included in contingent consideration payable.
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

6. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 6. EXBFRWE

(@  An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as

(@ AEBEFAZEXBEONMOT

follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Sale of healthcare products HEREER 17,146 14,904
Sale of electronic components HEEF M 3,146 18,560
Sale of cotton yarn HERY 17,010 -
Funeral and related business BEE NI ETS 46,961 38,263
Stem cell technology business AT TS 1,850 -
86,113 71,727
() An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net ()  AEEFERNZEARES RIBAFED
income for the year is as follows: AT
2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&x FHEIT
Interest income on FLEM A
Bank deposits RITHER 46 10
Other loans and receivables HEmER K EWRIA 7,045 744
Total interest income MBI A B EE 7,091 754
Dividend income from unlisted REFLMAHBEEREZ
available-for sale investment A B A - 52
Exchange gain P& 5 iz 410 1
Sundry income HMIFU A 3 21
7,504 828
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEER
2013 2012
—E—= —E—-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Interest expense on bank and other HARAFANBEHERETR
borrowings wholly repayable within EmEEZREMRAY
five years 2,582 1,171
There was no borrowing cost capitalized during the year FAN - BEEMNERMEEXNA(ZE—Z
(2012: Nil). Fom|m) o
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BRBIRIEE
Loss before tax of the Group has been arrived at after NEB 7B BTEES IR T38| :
charging:
2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B TR (BIEEEMS)
— Salaries and allowances — Hre &R 23,079 9,518
— contributions to defined contributions — [AIE SR FUR R AE F
retirement benefits schemes sEIHR 952 532
24,031 10,050
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN
— audit services — BIZRH 550 450
— non-audit services — BB 350 -
Amortization of leasehold land FHE b B 5 4 4
Depreciation of property, Y - BB R EREITE
plant and equipment 10,891 8,137
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE - BE&
and equipment REEE 2,110 -
Legal and professional fees (Note) FEERREEER (KEE) 9,966 6,334
Operating lease rentals in respect of BAEEME ZEE
rented premises HERS 5,402 482
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFECEEE 47,349 43,495
Note: During the year, legal and professional fees included equity- Wiat - FR - EEREEERARERTAAAE
settled share-based payments in aggregated amounts of Bz ER T REE R ARD AER 2
approximately HK$5,671,000 granted to consultants of the T ERA 495,671,000 T (—F— — 4 :
company (2012: HK$5,672,000). 5,672,000 7)) ©
9. INCOME TAX 9. FiB®
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of REGEE2EMRERZFTERFEYTE
comprehensive income represents:
2013 2012
—E—= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Current tax BV EAFR 18
Hong Kong B 1" -
PRC enterprise income tax TSR 1,166 758
Deferred tax (Note 27) EIERRIE (K17E27) - -
1,177 758
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9.

92

INCOME TAX (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for

the year.

PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the PRC
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits at
the rates of income tax prevailing in the PRC.

4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

9. Fifg® @)

FEME

165% (ZZF——4F :

I\

SR F G ERR TR B AR R
16.5%) sHEHEE -

PRESERMERIRETIRE T B2 BRY

S AAR R IRITAT ST AT B4 -

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to EE] B BN EE 2 NEEMSERE S W0
the loss before tax as follows: T
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loss before tax FRELRTES1E (41,949) (31,267)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated  FRFiATE B2 B&EF
at the tax rates applicable to profits LB R AR E A
in the jurisdictions concerned SRR ETE 7,263 5,748
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBA 2 RIF 2 4,315 1,053
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ATHOBR F 2 R A AT 0%
and loss not allowable BBz BT E (4,411) (6,874)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREE RS E
not recognised (4,580) (33)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RERGARIBEEZ
recognised M E (3,764) (©677)
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses not SR ARERBAIEEIE
previously recognised s E = 25
Income tax expense for the year AEFEEEHRAT (1,177) (758)

There was no income tax recognised in other

comprehensive income and directly in equity (2012: Nil) R(ZE——F:&|) o

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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W\

| State

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 10. XAREBEAELEE
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the HE T =F=ZA=+—RHILFEZAEAR
company for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes AEAEARGEAEREEERNAR A
a profit of approximately HK$9,829,000 (2012: loss of THMFR AR IR 2 & M#)9,829,0008 T (=&
approximately HK$23,953,000) which has been dealt with in ——1F : E518#923,953,000870) °

the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s 0ss i e EEANTAEEEIE Y WERENOT
for the year is as follows:

2013 2012
—E-= —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) NGB e L
attributable to owners of the Company & N/NSIE 2PN
dealt with in the Company’s financial mAamM/ (BB &8
statements 9,829 (23,953)
Impairment losses recognised on KB A R 2 B HER
investment in subsidiaries ZREEE (14,000) -
Impairment losses recognised on amounts it FE Uit &8 A B FR B FE R
due from subsidiaries ZRIERBE = (32,607)
Company'’s loss for the year RRRRFEEE (4,171) (56,560)
11. DIVIDEND 1. BE
No dividend has been paid during the year nor proposed REE RN ERBEMRE - IMEZEA
for the year (2012: Nil). FEREEIABRE(ZE—_F  8) -
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12. LOSS PER SHARE

94

(a) Basic loss per share

12. EREE
(a) BREXERE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based

on the following data:

BRENEBERIIRIE T BIEAE

Loss EE 2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Loss for the year attributable to N EHER AL
owners of the Company KFEEE (35,614) (28,448)
Weighted average number of ZERINEFITE 2013 2012
ordinary shares —E—= —E——4F
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April ROA—BzE#&TERkR  2,492,786,138  2,077,786,138
Effects of ordinary shares issued BETERR 2 EE 511,628,767 195,027,322
3,004,414,905 2,272,813,460

(b) Diluted loss per share

(b) BEREBIER

The calculation of the diluted loss per share is based

on the following data:

SREEERRE T BIEE

Loss &8 2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Loss for the year attributable to PIN/NETE ¥ = DN Y el
owners of the Company REEEIE (35,614) (28,448)
Weighted average number of TERMMEFSE (B #E) 2013 2012
ordinary shares (diluted) —E—= —F——
Weighted average number of R=A=+—RzE@ERK
ordinary shares at 31 March hniEF 5 & 3,004,414,905  2,272,813,460
Effects of exercise of share options ITEERECTE 173,000,000 43,637,313
Effects of contingent consideration HARREIRD 2 &
shares 249,333,333 -
3,426,748,238 2,316,450,773
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 12. BREE @)

(b) Diluted loss per share
For the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
granted under Share Option Scheme A (Note 29)
because the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price.

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segment information is based on
the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, Chairman of the Company, for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment of the Group. During the year, the Group's
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(@ Sale of healthcare products;
(b)  Sale of electronic components and cotton yarn;
(c)  Funeral and related businesses; and

(d)  Stem cell technology business.

(b) BREEEE
BHE_Z——-—FRk=-F—=F=H
=t—BLFE AESREEERE
Bl MR AR AN A Bl R IE B AR AT 81
(FI7F29) B 2 BB IR EETTE - Lt )
BRZEERE2TEESN AT

E o

3. 7 EEH

AEBzEENBERTDIREADRE R
B ZEBREHTIELERRABIARA
TE)EHEN UHIEREREFHAE
BRE - RAFER - REFEMHRESE
AISE8SE - ARBZRERAIREN LT

(@ HEREEM®M

b) HEETFEARBL

€ BEERBEERH &

(d) ARSI -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B E—E—=F=A=+—RALFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 7 BER @)
Information regarding the above segments is reported B Lo\ ERZ5NT :
below:
(@) Segment revenues and results (@) PEWRBERES
Sale of
Sale of electronic Funeral Stem cell
2013 healthcare  components and related technology
—E-=F§ products and cotton yarn businesses business Total
HE HEET RER B
REER B RS HEER BIER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR FET FET
Revenue from external customers REIREP 2 i
Segments results (loss)/gain HEEE (BB hE
Impairment of other receivables Hit W FERE
Impairment of other receivables Hi R ER ERR
written back
Impairment of goodwil HERE
Fair value change on held-for- BIEEEREZ D TEEY
trading investments
Gain on disposal of held-for- MERFEERE 2 M
trading investments
Unallocated corporate income FABEERA
Unallocated corporate expenses A EEERY
Finance costs HBEA
Taxation BB
Loss for the year ’EEER
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(@) Segment revenues and results

(continued)
2012
—E-—F

NN

| Statemen

13. 7 EER @)
(@) PEKNER¥EEE)

Sale of Sale of Funeral

healthcare electronic  and related
products  components  businesses Total

HE HEET BER
REED ik REER ek

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TET TR

Revenue from external customers R EINEEF 2 Iz 14,904 18,560 38,263 71,727
Segments results VAR ES 147 28 2,917 3,092
Impairment loss of other E B RERSE

receivables (8,915) (8,915)
Impairment loss of other E e B R EEE

receivables written back 337 337
Loss on disposal of available-for- &R (&4 7 E18

sale investments (19,881)
Fair value change of held-for- BEBEREZATEEES

trading investments 5,866
Gain on disposal of held-for- HEREEERE 2 Wa

trading investments 311
Unallocated corporate income AOEEBKRA 748
Unallocated corporate expenses ko EEER Y (11,654)
Finance costs HHER (1,177 (1,171)
Taxation HE 8) (750) (758)
Loss for the year KEEERE (32,025)

There were no inter-segment sales in the current year
(2012: Nil). The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 4. Segment result represent
the result generated by each segment without
allocation of loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments, gain on disposal of held-for-trading
investments, fair value changes of held-for-trading
investments, impairment of goodwill, impairment of
other receivables, impairment of other receivables
written back, unallocated corporate income and
expenses, finance costs and taxation. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

AERVEREIMADBEHE(ZFT—=
FE) KEDBEZ G BRERS
BT APl 2 @FTBORMER - DX
BESIBELZEE HELXENR
HEAHEEREZER  HERE
BEEREZWE  HFEEREZA
FEZS  HERE HibRKHRIEA
A~ HA UK IEREREE - R
BEREWARFAY - BHBEREHE -
HRAEBLERRAZHRIER/ER
DENFHEDERBZGAETE -
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 2 EER @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERER
Sale of
Sale of electronic Funeral Stem cell
2013 healthcare  components and related technology
—E-ZF products and cotton yarn husinesses business Total
HE HEET RER E0 )
REER BHRRY i E EUES L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR TEr TR THx
Segment assets PEEE 7,734 46,925 263,100 28,242 346,001
Goodwill HE 8,888 169,830 178,718
Unallocated assets ROBEE 166,500
Consolidated assets BREE 691,219
Segment liabilities PEAR - 297 142,235 31,454 173,986
Unallocated liabilities FOBRE 53,235
Consolidated liabilities GARE 227,221
Sale of Sale of Funeral
2012 healthcare electronic  and related
—T—CF products  components  businesses Total
HE HE BER
REED B g ek

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR TR

Segment assets NREE 8,504 434 280,176 289,114
Goodwill S 8,864
Unallocated assets AOBEE 195,657
Consolidated assets RAREE 493,635
Segment liabilities HEEE 678 310 157,961 158,949
Unallocated liabilities KPEERE 635
Consolidated liabilities REaf 159,584
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

(c)

(continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than available-for-sale investments, held-
for-trading investments and goodwill. Corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment.

— all liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which
are not directly attributable to the business

TEER @)

(b)

=T
mn

oI

THEERER @)

RNRRARDEDBEBEERM

BRAHHERE FHHEEERE
KEEI FEEEACDIER
REDE - WIHEEEDER
BRHERELZAREETS
DEEEFDHE -

VIR ELED BEHEBEEZ
EEZRRIRBENINZHARA

activities of any operating segment. & o
Other segment information (c) HibpEER
Sale of
electronic
Sale of  components Funeral Stem cell
2013 healthcare and andrelated  technology
k- S 3 products  cottonyam  businesses business  Unallocated Total
HE HEET BH#R )
REER  BHREY REESR B P8 aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Ti#n THER THER THER TR
Interest income FIEMA - 7 8 68 7,008 7,091
Interest expenses FlERT - - (2,582) - - (2,582)
Depreciation and amortization WER#EE - (386) (7,892) (2,075) (542) (10,895)
Impairments of other receivables b RUFERERD
written back - - 247 - - 247
Impairment of other receivables HibEWEIERE - - (3,882) - - (3,882)
Income tax expenses FEHET = = (1,166) (1) = (1,177)
Additions to non-current segment REEEREERDNE
assets during the year BE = 4,188 3,756 218,166 2,011 228,121
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 2 EER @
(c) Other segment information (continued) (c) HtoBER (&)
Sale of Sale of Funeral
2012 healthcare  electronic  and related
—E-CF products  components  businesses  Unallocated Total
HE HE BER
REER BT EEER KPR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Interest income FEKA - - 6 743 754
Interest expenses MBS - - 117 - 117
Depreciation and amortization NENEH - - 7813 328 8,141
Impairment loss of other HinEWFIBRE
receivables written back ek - - 337 - 337
Impairment of other receivables EMJ@H&?A’IE?WE - - 8,915 - 8,915
Income tax expenses e - 8 750 - 758
Additions to non-current segment M@F REXERDNE
assets during the year LE - - 5,394 535 5929

(d) Geographical information
The Group operates in the People’s Republic of China

(excluding Hong Kong) (the “PRC") and Hong Kong.

(d) HEZEHR

AEERFEARKMNB(TREEE)

(THE ) REEEE -

The following is an analysis of the revenue from AT RIZREEMIBE D ZINKREFZ
external customers by location of operations and Wk KR EEMHE D ZIFRDE
information about its non-current assets by location EZEARDH -
of assets:
Revenue
2013 from external  Non-current
—E—= customers assets
IREFE
Z Wz kRBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FAET
Hong Kong BE 20,168 189,420
PRC =8 65,945 119,180
86,113 308,600
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c

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 7 ER @)
(d) Geographical information (continued) (d) HmEESR (&)
Revenue
2012 from external Non-current
—E——F customers assets
INRE P
Z W EMBNVEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHEIT
Hong Kong 5 15,552 1,464
PRC h 56,175 120,464
71,727 121,928

(e) Information about major customers
Analysis of revenue from transactions with a single
external customer amount to 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue is as follow:

Operating segment

() EEEFZEH

AT RIEAEEWE10%HNA EZE
—INREFPR S 2 Wam i

External customer

RENE IREF
Number Revenue
A (&
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F ZE-=ZF ~—FT-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
Sale of healthcare products HEREED 1 1 17,146 14,904
Sale of electronic components  $4&E FE i kg%
and cotton yarn 1 1 17,010 8,703
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENRENEAARSESZHEMT
Company'’s directors are as follows:

14. EERLEREHFEEZHNS

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
2013 and other  Share-based benefits
—E-=F Fees benefits ~ payments schemes Total
ek HURHBEH BARER
e EthiER PALE HE L8 ag

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TER TER TEL

Executive Directors yEs
Mr. Chu Hong Pong RERRE = = = - -
Mr. Lam Wing Tai (Note &) WAREE (Hiita) 57 - - 3 60
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau Exiss 492 - - 14 506
Mr. LuZhigiang Ry 504 - = - 504
Mr. Cai Da BERE 610 - = = 610
Ms. Li Mei (Note ) TR L (b 150 - - - 150
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Note ¢) ERERE (W) 168 = - - 168
Non-executive Director *uTES
Ms. Lam Kuo (Note ¢) wxa(Hitc) 250 - - - 250
Independent Non-executive Directors B 78S
Mr. Man Kok Leung (Note d) BEGEE(Wid) 40 - - - 40
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Note ) BHERL (Wia) 40 - - - 40
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEREE 90 - - - 90
Mr. Chan Yun Hing (Note b) REELE(HFD) 50 - = = 50
Mr. Gui Qiangfang (Note b) BB L& (D) 50 - - - 50
Mr. Hung Yat Ming (Note ¢) RABEE (ite) - - - - -
2,501 - - 17 2,518
Note a:  Resigned on 1 December 2012. Hiita: R-E——H+-A—HBEH/T-
Note b:  Appointed on 21 September 2012. Watb: R-ZT——FAA-+—RHEZE-
Note ¢:  Appointed on 1 December 2012. Htite: R-E——F+-A—BEZFE-
Note d:  Resigned on 21 September 2012. KtaFd: R-ZE——FHALA-+—HEHE -
Note e: Appointed on 28 March 2013. Wite: R-ZB—=F=ZA_+ \HEZT-
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

0)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

4
/

14. EERTEREHFEECZHES @
(i) E=M< @)

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
2012 andother  Share-based benefits
“E-CF Fees benefits payments schemes Total
ek W5 A EIET
ik AfnfeR  ARZAH BES ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chu Hong Pong RERLE - - - - -
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MXREE 60 - - 2 62
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ExmEE 277 - - 6 283
Mr. Lu Zhiciang (Note) EEREE (M) 252 - - - 257
Mr. Cai Da (Note) BEEE (i) 105 - - - 105
Independent Non-executive Directors BiF#HTES
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERLE 60 - - - 60
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen BHERT 60 - - - 60
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth A 60 - - - 60
874 - - 8 882

Note: Appointed on 30 September 2011

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
the loss of office (2012: Nil).

There was no emoluments waived by any directors
during the year.

The directors consider that they are the only key
management personnel of the Group and details for
their compensation have been set out above.

fet . M-ZE——FNA=TREZE

RAFER  AEEYTENHE T
T EEF R I AA S H I 2k ) 5] 1%
EMAREE 2 BE R RBERAH(E
(ZF——F:8\)-

FATETMNEFTHEMS -

EEZRR RERAKERIIEE
BAE BBESFHMEHFBERE
SCEL o
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTEBREHREEZHE @)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Five highest paid employees (i) LEBREFHFEE
During the year, the five highest paid individuals FRN AEBERFATEE=E(=%2
included 3 directors (2012: two), details of whose ——F MEB)EE AEEEMNEZ
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of HEER EXHEHY TR HIEE
the remaining non-director highest paid individual are EATZMEWT :
as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ’i\&ﬁﬁﬂ% al 1,606 486
Contributions to retirement benefits  ERIEFIET 214t 5%
schemes 6 12
1,612 498
Emoluments of the non-director highest paid BEHEESTALTZHMEN T T54&
individual(s) fell within the following bands: :

Number of individual(s)

AE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—_F
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 T T2 1,000,000 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E
1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financ
e P wRME

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

Property, plant and equipment
0% BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Construction  Leasehold
Buildings improvements  equipment  Vehicles Total  in progress [and Total
Bl %
B HEER Rtk hE BF  KEIER  HEid ]
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR ThR TR TR TR ThR TR

Cost A
A1 April 2011 R-F-—F@EA-A N2% 939 528 444 143319 143 8 145,037
Addtions e - 4456 145 400 5001 - - 5001
Transfer &2 - - - - - U] - 0
Exchange acjustments B % 3561 1,687 10 13 5561 % 11 5628
At 31 March 2012and at 1 April 2012 W-E-“E=f=1-8k
—F-ZEEA-A 94.857 B47 9933 5019 163,881 1,488 293 185,662
Additions e 31% - 466 5705 13167 - - 13167
Acquisition of subsicliries B AT - 9027 669 524 16,43 - - 16,213
Transfer &z - 1484 - - 1484 (1,484) - -
Disposal HE - (1722) (1,59) (746) 4,083 - - (4.083)
Exchange adjustments B ki 18 0 3 620 (8) 1 617
At 31 March 2013 W-F-z#=f=1-A 98434 57443 1496 10539 181,332 - 94 181,626
Accumulated amortization, depreciation ZitBE FERAE:
andimpairment.
ALY Aol 2011 N=F-—EmA-A 17,09 11763 189 25% BIH - 259 00
Charge for the year FEER 1364 268 676 mn 8137 - i 8101
Exchange adjustments EjiAg i3 480 41 10 1373 - - 1373
At 31 March 2012and at 1 April 2012 W-E-—E=f=1-Ak
—F-ZEEA-A 2,58 14929 263 3108 43260 = 263 353
Charge for the year EEEH 1 380 1713 87 1081 - i 1089
Disposal tE - (684) 872) (397 (1,953 - - (1,953
Exchange adjustments EXE 1 7 9 12 28 - - 08
At31March 2013 R-E-ZF=F=1-H 27131 18,140 3010 3600 52406 - %1 52673
Net carrying amount: FHEE:
At 31 March 2013 R-E-Z£=f=1-R 71,303 39,303 11401 6919 128,926 - 7 128,953
At 31 March 2012 W E-“£=f=1-A 72269 33503 28% 191 110621 1,488 kil 112139
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yl

ta

AN\

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BMERRE @)
(continued)
The Company VNN
Furniture,
fixtures, and
equipment
R RERRE
HK$'000
FHIT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2011 R-E——FEA—H 1,451
Additions NE 131
At 31 March 2012 and at 1 April 2012 RZE——F=A=+—HERZ=ZZE—=—F
MmA—H 1,582
Written off Hss (1,440)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=HA=+—H 142
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:  Z:HHTE MIEE ¢
At 1 April 2011 RZE—FEA—H 197
Charge for the year FEEHR 308
At 31 March 2012 and at 1 April 2012 RZBE——F=ZA=+-—HBhk-_ZT——F
mH—H 505
Charge for the year FEEH 275
Written off bk (720)
_AtAIMarch2003 ] W=FT=%=ZA=1780 ...
Net carrying amount: BREVFE
At 31 March 2013 R-ZZE—=F=HA=+—H 82
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=F=+—H 1,077
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2013 2012
—E-= —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Cost: B
Balance at beginning of year FHEER 10,071 9,693
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1)) 198,035 -
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 378
Balance at end of year FRER 208,144 10,071
Accumulated impairment: Z2EHHE -
Balance at beginning of year F&EH (1,207) (1.177)
Impairment recognised in the year FAERBE (28,205) -
Exchange adjustments b 5 A& (14) (36)
Balance at end of year FREH (29,426) (1,207)
Carrying amount at end of year FARIEAEE 178,718 8,864

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment) was allocated to cash generating units as

P2 7 BREE (Fks RETRE) D EEE T
REeEEEM

follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Funeral and related business operations &% & A %27
— Qinhai Fuli Fenghuangshan — H8ENBEEL 8,888 8,864
Stem cell technology business SRR 169,830 -
178,718 8,864
Impairment of goodwill EEEE
Funeral and related business operations TBEE AR TS

For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test,
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated rates stated below. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the cash-generating unit operates.

REERBRENANS  ReEELBEUZ
AREERDREEREEETE - WRMBER
MEEEHEZ AFRYRAEMBRZH
TRE - BEAFHZRERENRA T
EETL R - WRETSHEERSELSE
AT M 2 REITFIOIRRE -
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

16.

108

GOODWILL (continued)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Cash-generating unit

Gross margin

16.

W\

BE @)
HEFERAEERR TERS

Growth rate Discount rate

BEeELEN AR BR= BRI E
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T ZB-=ZF _T—_—_F Z8B-=F _T——F
% % % % % %
Qinhai Fuli Fenghuangshan & &2 #IBLE L 64 671 4 4 6.0 6.5
Management determined the budgeted gross margin %.'EEB*E?Fiﬂ?}i%fﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁi
based on past performance and its expectation for market EEFEK - FHAZMEFEREREER
development. The weighted average growth rates used ﬁ‘ﬁ AR —E c IRAZ B REBRAIME -
are consistent with the forecasts in industry trends. The WRMEBEDESERR -
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.
Stem cell technology business B M i R
At the date of completion of acquisition, the management REETZKBH  XAREEECREZE
of the Company had carried out impairment assessment on FEEFHEERAGTRUEMEFEZE
the carrying amount of goodwill arising on the acquisition BEE R ERARRNERSEE R
of stem cell technology business based on the business ERMEETREN D - BIERMGE  BAR
valuation prepared by Roma Appraisals Limited adopted BT %75 2 2 F 18 A&333,000,0008 7T A
for acquisition purpose. According to the valuation, % B P 5 4 25 B 4G S P 169,830,000/ T
the fair value of the stem cell technology business was ENERUB TR ETERERRESSE
HK$333,000,000, of which HK$169,830,000 was attributable 28,205,000 7T ©
to the interest held by the Group, resulting in an impairment
loss of HK$28,205,000 was recognized in the profit or loss
immediately after the completion of acquisition.
For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test, REEHEBRENRATNES  BReEARBULZ
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is Bl ENIRERAEBEBETEETE - MEA
determined based on value-in-use calculation which uses FTE%ZT%H*ETFW%E%Ttt}’%‘EZﬂi,HHEJI
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved BEEMESHZBeRETEN -
by management covering a five-year period.
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BHE @)
Stem cell technology business (continued) B T 5 (@)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: STEFERABEMAEERK
Cash-generating unit Gross margin Average growth rate Discount rate
BeELEN ER=E THERE BRR =
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=H —F-—-F ZF-=F _FT——-F —E-=F —_FT——-F
% % % % % %

Stem cell technology S RS ES

business 79 - 56.7 - 21.6 -
Management determined the budget gross margin EEBEEEARERANHTIERE A
based on past performance and its expectation for ETTEEERNE - TAYHISEREITED
market development. The average growth rates used BRI —2 o PTABLIR R st L FIIE - I
are consistent with the forecasts in industry trends. The R AR S fE T E AR o

discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

17. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AR ZKRE
The Company
¥ NN
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHIT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT - AR 224,780 40,780
Provision for impairment losses VERENSEitEy (54,000) (40,000)
170,780 780
Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 gm% BEENEEFEHELAERTE A
March 2013, which materially affected the Group's results NAEEMBRIN_Z—=F=A=+—
or net assets, are set out in note 38 to the consolidated A2 B H R A T SRR ME3S8 -

financial statements.
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I

tatel

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. A HEHERE
The Group and the Company
AEBRAKADQT
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Unlisted equity investment in PRC, A2 IE EMRARE
at cost (Note) LA (M5E) 925 925
Exchange adjustment b H R 4 -
929 925
Note: Btet -
The unlisted investment was designated as available-for-sale FELMREEERAAHIEERE  WEET R H
investment and has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The AKESEX - ARABEAFEGLFTHEEXN &
unlisted investment is stated at cost less any accumulated ERANTFELTREAFEHE  HIFLHHRER
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates KA A RETRES R - NEBEEEREHA
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that the fair HEZEZIRE o
value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.
19. INVENTORIES 19. &
The Group
TEH
2013 2012
—E—-= —FT——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Funeral products BEEEm
— Materials and consumables — RE R EFER 17 49
— Finished goods — &K 47,624 46,900
47,641 46,949
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20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

21.

- =F-A=+—HILEFE

20. BB~ RIRKIE

The Company
RAT]
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B A 227,642 132,621
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEHRERE ¢
Beginning balance FUEEH (73,219) (40,612)
Provided during the year FNEE = (32,607)
Ending balance FRER (73,219) (73,219)
Carrying amounts REE 154,423 59,402
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- JEMIE AR FUAAEERR 2B NERE

free and repayable on demand.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. FEUWARRN R H 1t FE UK IE

The Group The Company
REE KA F]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——-F ZE-—-=%F —_T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FH&T
Trade receivables FE U BR R 13,086 3,386 - -
Deposits and prepayments 14 KMIE FIE
(Note j) (BtaFi) 135,918 55,754 36,744 30,555
Loan receivables (Note i) FEWE R (B aEii) 57,329 30,400 55,000 30,000
Other receivables Hib U I8 15,034 16,782 2,451 276
Amounts due from minority JE BT B A B A B R
shareholders of subsidiaries OB (K aFiil)
(Note ifi) - 41,870 - -
Amounts due from directors JEWHIBARIESR
of subsidiaries (Note i) FRIB (K a2 i) - 2,932 - -
Amounts due from related NI EPNET 2L NG
company of subsidiary 2 SRIE (B e i)
(Note iii) 21,578 21,445 - -
242,945 172,569 94,195 60,831
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables
comprise amounts receivable from sales of healthcare
products and cotton yarn (2012: sales of healthcare
products). No interest is charged on the trade receivables.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

21. FEWBR IR & EL b FE U 7008 ()

RBEHR  BRUEREERHEREER
&T%@(—f——i CHERRER) B

PR - RUERFRTET R - AEEHMEM LS
mﬁ?%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ#ﬁuu °

AEEEEEEREUWRBEZATREOSHE
YTREREREER TR WS REH
EREE o B E EUAR R 2 A YR B PERS - X
SEEEREEARAERERE Etii&iﬂﬁ
RIFEYIRSR 2 EEERA S HBREME

The management of the Group monitors the recoverable
amount of the trade debts and considers adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amount, if
necessary. In determining the recoverability of a trade
receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, there are no trade RERE BIR - B 2 e HA M I R (B 2 JE U
receivables past due and not impaired. AR °

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging REBRTFERFZEEEN T EUWZHE
ﬁj\

from cash on delivery to 90 days. An analysis of trade 90 R - LB EAMEY 2 EUERFRR DT

receivables by age, presented based on the invoice date, is PN

as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH ART
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=F - ZB-=F —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FA&T

0-30 days 0£230H = 787 - -

31-60 days 31£60H = 412 - -

QOver 60 days 60 B A £ 13,086 2,187 - -

13,086 3,386 = -

Notes: Bier

[0) As at 31 March 2013, deposits and prepayments included: [0) )5/\ —E-=F=ZA=1+—H  iJe &EN

HIBEIE -

(@ a refundable deposit of HK$36,600,000 paid in () SERsWE-—RTERYNTARE
connection with a proposed acquisition of an entity, DT%:}@ 600,000 7T - A iR I
details of the proposed acquisition are set out in the = %W\$Q}m HE A-—ZT—=
Company's announcement dated 28 March 2013; and =A-tNBZRAER: &

(b) trade deposit in an aggregate amount of by EFiTEE 481,906,000 7T ©
approximately HK$81,906,000.

(i) As at 31 March 2013, loan receivables were unsecured, iy MZEBE—=F=A=+—8 EKEZAE
bearing interest at the fixed rates of 8% to 15% per annum W RETCTEFNEIEEISESF AR
and repayable within 12 months. BR12EABRES -

(i) The amounts due from minority shareholders, directors and (i) FERHMHBARDVEER EFENEBAT
related company of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free ZHIEAEER - £ 8 RER TR

and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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22. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

22. BEEERE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAQT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAL
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong, REBEMZRARE
at fair value (Note) RAE M) 62,876 43,258

Note: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the
basis of quoted market price at the end of the reporting
period.

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

24. BANK BORROWING

fifet - B E 2 RHETHRRE AR E
BE -

23. BERIRITHEER
R RPTESBET LB RS RRE
H8 A=A AR ERRTER

24. BITEE

The Group The Company
KEE FVNE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —T——-F —E-—-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FTET FHET
Bank borrowing RITEE 35,910 18,504 - -

The bank borrowing is secured by personal guarantee
provided by a director of subsidiary, bearing interest at
the fixed rate of 10.2% (2012: 13.776%) per annum and is
repayable within twelve months.

The effective interest rate on the bank borrowing is 10.2%
(2012: 13.915%) per annum.

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due to subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

BITEETIA—ZB AR ES R E
AEREET - REEFEFRI02E(ZZ
—Z—F 13776 B AR+ Z@AR

tEiE -

RITEEZEBRFANERA102E(ZE—=
% 1 13915E) o

25. BEHIE D RRE
ERHEAAREARER 28 RARE
R -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. BNERRRHEMENRIE
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice HREHHEY ZEARFEREDTOT ¢

date is as follow:

The Group The Company
AEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
= ZT——-F Z8B-=F ZFT—=

HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET T

Trade payables FEATERIR 15,415 20,951 - -
Other payables and accruals H b e FRIE K BT B 86,321 108,666 876 541
Amounts due to minority JEASTB B A A
shareholders of subsidiary DERER 2
(Note) I (Hfat) 30,000 98 - -
Amounts due to directors of FENKIBARIESR Y
subsidiaries (Note) SE (K ) 4,955 4,783 - -
Amounts due to related FEAT B 2 B RBEE A F)
companies of subsidiaries 2R (HEE)
(Note) 2,260 6,582 - -
138,951 141,080 876 541
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is KEETEmZ FHIEERR120H -
120 days.
The aging analysis of trade payables by age based on the REBEHREIN CENERCER TN
invoice date is as follows: N
The Group The Company
rEHE ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——-F —E-—=F —_T——F

HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET T

0-30 days 0£30H 358 1,039 = -
31-60 days 312 60H 243 199 = -
Over 60 days 60 B LA E 14,814 19,713 = -

15,415 20,951 - -

Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders, directors and Wit - ERMBE AR ERE  EFREAB AR
related companies of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- ZRUEAEEE  p B REBTENRD -

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

114 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &&4 fn RIEERTEE AR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Finan
GEMIEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEFIE
The Group’s major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) not REBTERBRELERBEE (BE)HD
recognised are analysed below: W
Deferred tax assets EEMIEEE
Unused tax
losses
REVABIEEE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2011 W-ZE——4mA—R 7,861
Net change FE)FEE 270
At 31 March 2012 and at 1 April 2012 RZE——F=ZA=+—8xK
R-E——FWA—H 8,131
Net change #)FE 1,287
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 9,418
No deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of A 4 PR A 2 TEORI 2 R 2R ) 2HOJR T i A TE S
the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit ERRELERIBEEE -
streams.
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBEEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
IEEB BT E
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2011 R_E——FHmHHA—H -
Net change BE)F5E 15
At 31 March 2012 and at 1 April 2012 R-E—=—FZA=+—8BK
A—E——FA—H 15
Net change BE)FE 74
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 89
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27.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

No deferred tax liability has been recognized due to the
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be
payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the

27. IEERIE (&)

EEBRAESE @)
W ER G BB RENABEETER
ZEREZEMERELEHRAE -

REFPECEMRETHE B -TFTN\F—H
— B REM B AR RERENE KR
SZABRIAIN o AN SR B AT 4% B 3 0
RERERE  BEREZERA ARG
SRE - B B S B AT R E R
eI 2 B ZRNR A VB HRERELRLER
TR -

temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &
Number of
shares Amount
BHEE k-t
‘000 HK$'000
TR FHEIT
Authorised (ordinary shares of ETE (BREECAB T
HK$0.04 each) LA
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and 2013~ R-Z——FMAF—H -
T CHFRZT—=F
=A=+—H 5,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (ordinary shares of EEITRER (BRAE
HK$0.04 each): 0048 Lz EimE)
At 1 April 2011 RZE—FMA—H 2,077,786 83,112
Issue of new shares under share placing R #E & 5 Bl & 21T 51D
(note a) (Kizta) 415,000 16,600
At 31 March 2012 and at 1 April 2012 NR-TE——F=A=+—HBEK
R-ZZE——FmA—H 2,492,786 99,712
Issue of new shares under share placing R #E & 5 Bl & 21T 51D
(note b) (K1zEDb) 498,500 19,940
Issue of consideration shares (note c) BITRERMN (Mitc) 300,667 12,026
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=HA=+—H 3,291,953 131,678
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

29.

Notes:

@

On 12 October 2011, 415,000,000 shares of the Company
were issued to placees at a total consideration of
HK$46,080,000, of which HK$16,600,000 was credited to
share capital account and the net balance after expenses of
HK$11,194,000 was credited to share premium account.

Oon 18 July 2012, 498,500,000 shares of the Company
were issued to placees at a total consideration of
HK$99,700,000, of which HK$19,940,000 was credited to
share capital account and the net balance after expenses of
HK$76,165,000 was credited to share premium account.

On 18 September 2012, 300,666,667 shares of the Company
were issued to Add Talent Holdings Limited’s nominees
to acquire 51% equity interest in 159 Regerative Medicine
Group (H.K.) Limited (the “Target Company”) at a total
consideration of HK$184,000,000. of which HK$12,026,666.68
was credited to share capital account and the net balance
after expenses of HK$72,110,000 was credited to share
premium account.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval
of the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be
issued under the Share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme B") on 17 November 2010, the Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme B to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 1 February 2002 (the “Share
Option Scheme A").

4

28.

29.

s T‘F

Notes to the Consolidated Finahc

NN

| Statemen

& NE )
HifzE -

R-—ZT——%F+H+=H - 415,000,000 %
AR B9 LA 48 X {8 46,080,0007% 7T 3 1T
FAEEEA - HP 16,600,000 7T 2 5 ABEA
B - MANBRFSZ 18 2 &80 FEE 11,194,000%8
TLAIE s AR H EEE -

@)

RZZT—Z—%F+ A+ /8 498,500,000
AN B A7 LA 48 4X {8 99,700,000 8 TT 31T
FERLA - B 19,940,000 7T 2 5H AR
8 - MANRRBA S 1% 2 A& ERFER 76,165,000 7
TRIEFF AR EER

RZZE—ZF LA +/\H 300,666,667 2
DA DA 2B 184,000,000 TLEE 1T F
WERARARZRABA - K159 B
ARBEE(FE)BRAR(BEEAT))
7 51% % AN 4 i 0 H R 12,026,666.68 7% TT
Bt ABRAKER - MINKEL %G 2 A FEE
72,110,000 7T AJE AT AR D m BB ©

BRETE

BER-_Z-—ZTF \AOBARTZARFMR
REpAREEE s —RERRER  URE
BN —E—TF+— ATt BIERE
B ((BRESEZ D& THITZK
METREEZBERT - RABZHRMBE
RETBIZ BN ST —F - A —HERHK
ZEhE 8 (R ETRIFR )
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

118

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

(@) Share Option Scheme A

The Company’s Share Option Scheme A was
approved on 1 February 2002 pursuant to a written
resolution of the Company. The purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected individuals to subscribe for shares in
the Company as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, invite any full-time or part-time employee
of the Company or any member of the Group,
including any director of any member of the Group
and any advisor or consultant (in areas of technical,
financial or corporate managerial) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe
for the shares in the Company for a consideration of
HK$1 per each lot of share options granted.

The Share Option Scheme A was terminated on 17
November 2010. No further options will be granted
thereunder, but the provisions of the Scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of the Options granted
prior to its termination or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
Scheme. The option period shall not be less than 3
years and shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of option. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme A must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue unless approval from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each individual
in any twelve-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at the date of grant unless approval from
Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

E AT SFUES

W\

29. BB ERE ()
(a) BRAEFTEH

RAGBEREFEFR_ZZT_F=
A— EMETJ%ZLVRT—IEEEJ% =
BHE - FTEIEEEA R A Mk
ATHEHAREARR R < BBIRE
ERBEHRNEBEMERER 2 2B
Bl - EF A WIERFB AR AIHA
SEAEMKE R E 2 EA 28R
BEE BRERASEEFAKEQRRZE
MEERAQRZEFMMBEBRRZ
EfIRER A RA (BT - B sk
EEIREHE)  UEMNREARAR
B Bk SHARLERE
REBI1BT -

BREFIFER-_ZE-ZTF+—A
THH&KIE- %ETF@E&M@**}&
HEERE - 5T 8l Z DA T AN
REEAX - AL IERRE 2 BR
R TITEMH & LA RER 81X
ZHRETEERR - BRESRHE
MERERRESA IS IR=ZFRT
SHEBTF HMEREBBENITE
RIZARA ZREHR - ZMBRER
ﬁ(\\?iﬂj H AR 28 BT 18T

R4 B R AT 81 R R X L 2 RS BROHE P
BRBEDBBEATEEEEHTR
7 210% » 1EEEIS AR A IR R AL
BRI RBERBAR(BEZA)
FEA+—EAREAREEALE
RS REZ BRERITRE D ET
kETETZBRNDER  TEEAR
BHAMZEBTRM 1% HERE
ARRAEREFRIN -

EBRAT
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Option Scheme A (continued)
Options may be exercised at any time during the
specified option period. The exercise price shall be
determined by the directors of the Company, and
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated on GEM's daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company's shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
shares.

Share Option Scheme B

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme B is
to enable the Company to provide incentive to
participants with the opportunity of participating in
the growth of the Company by acquiring shares in
the Company and may, in turn, assist in the attraction
and retention of talents who have made contributions
to the success of the Company.

Given that the Share Option Scheme A has expired
on 14 January 2012, the Directors considered that it
is in the interest of the Company to adopt the Share
Option Scheme B in compliance with Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules to replace the old scheme.

The option period shall not be less than 3 years
and shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of option. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under both Share Option Schemes
involving the issue or grant of options must not exceed 30%
of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.

29. BB AETTE (@)

(a)

(b)

BRESTET @)

B A X5 E RE A A A BE RS 1T
F-THREARAAFNEEEE X
ELRTI=ZFERZ2HESE ()X R
AR R L B EERIRRE B RE
KRB 2 W E - (DARRBRDRE
BERHAHAELEEAZFHKRT
B R(i)ARAEMDEE -

BRESTECZ
BREFELERESARABUARS
HEEREESBBIWEARRBTRN
DEARBZEBRAR - KMABHR
5N BB AR E 2 BRI B B
N

EREREFEFER T ——F—
A+tHmBER EFERREBREIER
LR A 23 RN E R B 2 A
MARERBREABI A ARRAB M -

B AR A P 9 A B AR B R RT D
BIR=FRTBEBTF  HER
EBBIERITERIZBI A 2 &REHR -
EMBREANE L BHEF288R
EARVETT -

RIBMIEDS K BT R B A 2 BB A g T
BRI RERFITRZA W ARTTE B E
RITER AT REEITZ R BB B LRTE
BB R A TR E#ITRD Z30% °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the share options granted by the Company in the

29. BRAERTE (@)
ARFIR-E—SEBHERESED

year 2010 are as follows: T
Closing
share price
Share Number of immediately
Options share options Exercise Fairvalue  hefore the
Scheme Date of grant Exercise period granted price at grant date date of grant
ROREE
BRE B R R BEA
BE] RdiAH TR BREZE 1B BHZAYE ZWmE
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT o BT
A 26 April 2010 26 April 2010 to 25 April 2013 120,376,000 0.2760 0.0743 0.241
FR “Z-ZFNA-+AA ZE-ZENA-tAZE
“E—-FNAZt+AHA
B 18 November 2010 18 November 2010 to 173,000,000 0.1670 0.0466 0.153
Z ZZ-ZF+—H+/AB 17 November 2013
ZE-ZET-ATN\BE
—T—=%+—-A+tH
The fair value of the share options granted HK$5,671,000 BB AR i 2 A ¥ {E5,671,00008 T E
was recognized as share option expense of during the year RERNERAERERE(ZT—=—4F:

120

(2012: HK$5,672,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using

5,672,000 7T) °

FARHAER T AN GEE 2 BREQFER
B B —EA e ERA AR - B

the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into account the EEERHBRE 2 GRRGEG - ZEXE
terms and conditions upon which the share options were DABEOT

granted. The significant inputs into the Model were as

follows:

Scheme A B
5T E H z
Share Price (HK$) as at the date of grant PE B2 BRE (BT) 0.241 0.153
Exercise Price (HK$) TEEGET) 0.276 0.167
Expected volatility TEHR i@ 103.56% 94.013%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ g FI & 1.255% 0.716%
Life of option BRI R 3years F 3 years

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other
feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Details of the Company’s share options outstanding under
share option scheme during the year are as follows:

29.

BRETE (®)
AR TR B ES BB T MR ITEER
BEHENT

Number of
share options Number of
outstanding Cancelled/ share options
Share at the Granted  Exercised  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
Options Exercise beginning during during during during  attheend
Scheme  Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year theyear  of the year
BRE EMEATR ERite/ EREATE
HiE | RAAH TEE  <BREHE EREH Ehfrfe K1 Ehid 2EREZA
HKS
BT
2013
—E-Zf
Consultants A 26/04/2010 0.276 120,376,000 - - - - 120,376,000
Bf i Z3-Tf
ME-+7H
Consutants B 18/11/2010 0.167 173,000,000 - - = - 173,000,000
B 4 “5-%F
T—ATNE
293,376,000 - - - - 293,376,000
2012
5%
Constltants A 26/04/2010 0.276 120,376,000 - - - - 120376000
B i “5-%f
MAZ+<H
Consultants B 18/11/2010 0.167 173,000,000 - - - - 173,000,000
Bf Z ZE-%E
T-AT/NAH
293,376,000 - - - - 293376000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
293,376,000 (2012: 293,376,000) share options outstanding
under the schemes, which represented approximately
8.91% (2012: 12%) of the Company’s ordinary shares in
issue as at that date.

REREER - ANARIBIRETEIA 293,376,000

(= — — 4 : 293,376,0001 ) 15 R 1T1E

2R HERARARIRZADEITER
E418.91% (ZF— =4 : 12%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 B E—E—=F=A=+—RALFE

30. RESERVES 30. #fE
(@) The Group (@) &=&£H
Investments
Share Special  revaluation  Translation Share Options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEE BHRE REEGHHE BERE  ERERE ZHEE &g

HKS'000 HK§000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThR TiEn TERL ThL TiEn TERL ThL

At 1 April 2011 RZ2-—%MA-H 289,108 (39.998) (1,026) 1,560 4102 (67,394) 186,352

Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - (28,448) (28,448)
Reclassification for cumulative  HETEHHEREREH
fairvalue losson disposal of ~ HEZHATEFE

available-for-sale investments - - 1,026 - - - 1,026
Exchange difference arisingon~ EBINEBESER

translation of foreign operations - - - 2475 - - 2475
Total comprehensive income.~ AEE 2 EdizAE

for the year - - 1,026 2475 - (28,448) (24,947)
Issue of ordinary shares under — BERHREX/TERR

share placing 11,194 - - - - - 11,194
Recognition of equity-settled  EANERFALER

share-based payments DR BER 2 (31 - - - - 5672 - 5672

At 31 March 2012 and at E@:;ﬁ—:izﬂzﬂ-—ﬁ
1 April 2012 ——#NA-A 300,302 (39,998) - 4035 9774 (95,842) 178211

Loss for the year TEEEE

Exchange difference arisingon  E SN K ER =8
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensiveincome  AEE2AUWELE
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares under ~ BERARLERTERER
share placing

Issue of ordinary shares for ~— SLUEBHEAT
acquisition of subsiciaries BTLEAR

Recognition of equity-settled  BERMNERHALER
share-hased payments DR BER {3

At 31 March 2013 RZB-ZFZA=1-R

122 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &&4 fn RIEERTEE AR A R



iy

Notes to the Consolidated Financ
GEMIEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f#&fE @)
(b) The Company (b) &AF
Investments Share
Share revaluation options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RARE REERHE BRERE ZiER faEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL T T

At 1 April 2011 RZZE——4%NA—AH 289,108 (1,026) 4102 (99,758) 192,426
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - (56,560) (56,560)
Reclassification for cumulative HEMRHEREREFNE

fair value loss on disposal of 2HAFERFE

available-for-sale investments - 1,026 - - 1,026
Total comprehensive income FEE2AMGERE

for the year - 1,026 - (56,560) (55,534)
Issue of ordinary shares under REBROESHTLER

share placing 11,194 - - - 11,194
Recognition of equity-settied R NER H R EERUR R

share-based payments BEM 3 - - 5,672 - 5,672
At 31 March 2012 and at RZE-——F=R=1+—H

1 April 2012 RR-E-—&mA-AH 300,302 - 9,774 (156,318) 153,758
Loss for the year TEEER - = = (4.171) (4,171)
Total comprehensive income TEEZAMGERE

for the year - - - (4171) (4171)
Issue of ordinary shares under REBROESHTLER

share placing 76,165 - - - 76,165
Issue of ordinary shares for FENBA

acquisition of subsidiaries BTEER 72,110 - - - 72,110
Recognition of equity-settied AR A R E LA

share-based payments BHEEZRH - - 5,671 = 5,671
At 31 March 2013 R-BE-Z£=A=1+-H 448,577 - 15,445 (160,489) 303,533
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. A& @)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REMHERAR
(i) Share premium (i) BEE
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the RIEFASBEERNRIE(IERT)
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the AR B AT AR A7 Y45 1B 1A iR 3R 9k
Company is available for paying distributions st T ATICE BB ST AR B4
or dividends to shareholders subject to the MER A ME & B R
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of AERRN B RERE 9IRS M
Association and provided that immediately B B NEENBEER
following the distribution or dividend, the BRPEHNES - FRER S
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall IR AR o

due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Special reserve (i) 45RI#E
The special reserve of the Group represents RNEE 7 EFRIFEERNATIRGD
the difference between the nominal value of RIZBEZ_F LHAIEBREES
the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and HAFTIEEMT B A R IR BR A (E
the nominal value of the Company’s shares ARG T EITAR (D BRTE A
issued for the acquisition at the time of the MERZZ5 -

group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company's shares in 2002.

(iii) Investments revaluation reserve (i) HwESEHHE
Investments revaluation reserve represents REBGRBERELEGEREM
accumulated gains and losses arising PHEN R JHEEREM
on the revaluation of available-for-sale EEZRFEE  HBZSRE
investments that have been recognised in WHESWEADBEREN D
other comprehensive income, net of amounts EE S = e -

reclassified to profit or loss when those
investments are disposed of or are determined
to be impaired.

(iv) Translation reserve (iv) B®ER#HE
The translation reserve comprises all foreign M B E R E G N TR TS
exchange differences arising from the WMRELECIEERZ% - %&#
translation of the financial statements of BB EW T AQ FTH & 5T R
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in RIE o
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(g).
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30.

31.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(continued)

(v) Share option reserve
The share options reserve represents the fair
value of the number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
A(s)().

(d) Distributability of reserves
In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2013 amount to
approximately HK$288,088,000 (2012: HK$143,984,000).

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 31.
On 18 September 2012 (the “Acquisition Date"”), the
Group acquired 51% of the entire issued share capital of
the Target Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Target Group”) at a total consideration of HK$184,000,000
(the “Acquisition”). The Target Group is engaged in stem
cell technology business. The Acquisition provided good
opportunity for the Group to diversify from the existing
business into a new line of business with significant growth
potential. Details of the consideration on the Acquisition
are as follows:

I‘Statemen 'S

& @
(c) REMHERAZE®E

(v) BERERE
BREREEARRMRL®AR
TTEBREHE 22 FE - RIE
Y EEAC)) s Az T A AEE
LAHxTﬁFE}%E”ZH AMER S
ETHCR MR o

(d) "I#toiRfE#E
ARREERA RZE—=F=A
=t+—8 A2 77@1“/&%1&%2
{18 49 /% 288,088,000/ T ( — & — —
F 143,984,000 7T ) °

EBEHt
R-ZE——FAATNB(WRERH] K
% B LA 42 {8 184,000,000 T (BER K
BREFETRERD) WE B IEA R MEN B
RE(RETEREE]) 22 HTRAH
F51%([HEE)) - B ESER S AR
5% - WERAKRBEREXBETLER
EABRREREBNZHEGHBEZRHE -
Wigz REFBT

HK$°000

FET

Cash RE 30,000

Issue of shares (Note A) BT (BHaEA) 84,187
Contingent consideration arrangement AR EZHE (M5 B)

(Note B) 69,813

184,000
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Notes:

A.

126

The Company alloted and issued 300,666,667 Consideration
Shares at HK$0.28 per share, the fair value at the Acquisition
Date, to Add Talent Holdings Limited ("Add Talent”)
credited as fully paid on 18 September 2012.

The contingent consideration requires the Company to allot
and issue consideration shares in an aggregate number
of 249,333,333 shares upon satisfaction of the following
conditions:

@)

(ii)

(i)

The Company is required to allot and issue of
51,000,000 Consideration Shares to Add Talent
credited as fully paid if the 51% of the consolidated
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA") of the Target Group is not less
than HK$15,300,000 for the period from 1 October
2012 to 31 December 2013 (the "Guaranteed Period
A",

The Company is required to allot and issue of
85,000,000 Consideration Shares to Add Talent
credited as fully paid if the EBITDA of the Target Group
is not less than HK$25,500,000 for the period from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the "Guaranteed
Period B"),

The Company is required to allot and issue of
136,000,000 Consideration Shares to Add Talent
credited as fully paid if the EBITDA of the Target Group
is not less than HK$40,800,000 for the Guaranteed
Period A or the actual accumulative EBITDA achieved
for the Guaranteed Period A and the Guaranteed B is
not less than HK$40,800,000; and

The Company is required to allot and issue of
113,333,333 Consideration Shares (as defined below)
to Add Talent credited as fully paid upon either:

(@  Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin"), beneficially holds
approximately 41.16% of the issued share
capital of Add Talent, has obtained a patent
granted by the State Intellectual Property
Office of the PRC and the user right of stem
cell technology granted by Dr. Lin to the Target
Group remaining fully effective; or

(b)  the actual accumulative EBITDA achieved for
the Guaranteed Period A and the Guaranteed
Period B is not less than HK$25,500,000.

The Consideration Share was measured at HK$0.28, the fair
value at the Acquisition Date.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

A.

E AT SFUES

RZE—
EIE@Z

s

1. £ &6t

ZFEARTNB - AREIREE
N EZR028EBITAEEERE
NRI([BE ) BL 2 2 317 300,666,667 i

)\ﬁE@H’F@EZRFHﬂ °

ERATREE - RARBEREAQEER
B R 176 $£ 249,333,333 KB

(i)

REENDRUERMZA

=
2°

EBRA

MEREER -—T——F+A—HZ
—E-—=FF+-A=+—HHEJR
BHIAD ZBRE - B T E M A
K &2 A& #E ([EBITDAL) 2 51% & >
75%15,300,000,%7c NS PE b
g% K #5717 51,000,000 JE A BR B 1E
MRz RERS

HWEREER -_ZT-—NF-A—HZ
—E-mOFE+ - A=+—-BHR(RF
& HIB]) 2 EBITDA R 4> 174 25,500,000
BT BIARRRIZARIE S A8 N 31T
85,000,000 BEABRF VRS 2 KB
n

i) B 12 % B A (R i B3A Z EBITDA T
72 40,800,000 7 JT 8 AR 75 B A K
REEHIBE B 2 B R 5T EBITDATN
14 40,800,000 7T - BIAN A RIZER
1 2 g 2 K7 %517 136,000,000 B A BR
IR 2 RERRD « &

MEBEEUTRIER - ARRIAERES
fic 8% K 817 113,333,333k A BR 511 7B
BRZRERND (ERETO :

@@ AN E L HIE L)
ERBAEIEETRAD
41.16% » B EUS A B B 5 A A
EEREHZEFNRMELR
BREEE Lz #ERiE
RREDAE+RMS : &

) RERBZHARRZHBE K
# K 2 R FTEBITDAT 4
25,500,000 7T °

F{E0.28 8 TEt
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of contingent
consideration was re-estimated based on an assumed
probability weighting in fulfilling the performance
requirements. As a result, the fair value of contingent

31¥ﬁAﬁﬁ)
R—B—=F£=A=+—0 ZAREZA
FECREBTERER SRy MRS
FEE - Al BANSHAREZ AFERD
#717,453,00078 7T » FERT s AAKR(B 2 BB

consideration payable was reduced by approximately T
HK$17,453,000. Movements of the contingent consideration
payable are as follows:
The Group
LS 4L
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Carrying amount; AREE :
At beginning of the year F4) - -
Additions from acquisition of KEREHRBRARZAE
subsidiaries 69,813 -
Less: change in fair value B N EER (17,453) -
At end of the year FR 52,360 -

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$2,806,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
profit or loss for the year.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognized
on the Acquisition Date

Uit 8 AR A B 7R 49 2,806,000 78 TT E B FT 88 8
REFHR - YERAFREZBRERSH
%o

RUBRHKB2EERERZR
&

HK$000
FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE 16,243
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR RE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables &< ~ Fa1~ 2038 N H b fE W FK I8 6,514
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHEH 1,322
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals and other payables JE A~ BR SR LA JE A5 IR (6,600)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBERE
Amounts due to a shareholder JER IR 2 5178 (30,000)
Other payable E e kIR (15,000)
(27,521)
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 31. ¥866t@)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized RUBRHPWBCEERERZE
on the Acquisition Date (continued) & &)
The non-controlling interests (49% in the Target Group) RUEE B EIER Z IEIEER (B IEZEE 2
recognized at the Acquisition Date was measured by A9% HE 25 ) % 413,486,000 7T+ Jh 1% fE4R
reference to the proportionate share of the fair value of WEEY s VA R B EEE AT E 2 AlE
the acquiree’s identifiable net liabilities and amounted to RN

approximately HK$13,486,000.

Goodwill arising from acquisition WEBEEZ2EE
HK$000
FET
Consideration of acquisition Wi 2 B 184,000
Less: Non-controlling interest R IEIERR A A (13,486)
Add: Fair value of net identifiable liabilities 0 : Fr&ET#36 & %58
assumed ZRFE 27,521
198,035
Goodwill arose in the Acquisition because the Group WIHEARE I BEREEEERB Z®
would benefit from the revenue growth and future market MR Rt ss ) - HASE 2 Ba
development through stem cell technology and highly BRERRKTSEERER -
skilled workforce owned by the Target Group.
Net cash outflow on acquisition WEBEE 2RSSR FE
HK$000
FET
Consideration paid in cash EfRERE 30,000
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired B TR © RIRITA R (1,322)
28,678
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31.

32.

33.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Impact of the Acquisition on the results of
the Group

The Target Group contributed approximately HK$1,850,000
and loss of approximately HK$13,970,000 to the Group's
turnover and loss for the year respectively for the period
between the Acquisition Date and the end of the reporting
period.

If the Acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2012,
the total Group's turnover for the year would have been
unchanged due to the Target Group has no turnover and
the loss for the year would have been HK$31,601,000. The
pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of
the operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the Acquisition been completed on 1 April
2012, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

0On 18 September 2012, 300,666,667 shares of the Company
were issued to Add Talent's nominees to acquire 51%
equity interest in the Target Company as part of the total
consideration.

COMMITMENT

(i) Operating lease commitment
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitment payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises as
follows:

31.

32.

33.

¥xkatt@
WEBHAEEXE 2 TE

EZEBERWEHHEREHRIEHEAR
SEEERENMATERIEE R 1,850,000
7B 7T M B8 47 13,970,000 78 7T ©

Al BN —F——FOA— AR - BIAE
BRFAZBEXBRERFTE - RN
BREEYERFERE MAFEER
Al /& /331,601,000 7T ° Eiﬁ%éﬂ@f LER
B A —ERRMEER T —FMmA—
Elnﬁzﬁﬁlﬁﬁ,\ﬂ)l FZE %%ﬁ&% BE

FEFRERS

WZZE—=FNA+/\B - 300,666,667 N
RIRMBBEITTIREZREBA - LKEBRZ
NEZ 1% AR - (ERBREZ—&D -

iR

(i) FREHEERE
RB|EIKR - AEBERE T AT HEHL
SHERBEMEEMN 2 AEWT

The Group and the Company

AEBERALQT
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Within one year —F R 9,953 739
In the second to fifth year, inclusive —EERAF(BIEEREMT) 4,822 308
14,775 1,047
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33.

34.

130

COMMITMENT (continued)

(ii) Capital commitments
At the end of the reporting period, there was no
material capital commitment outstanding in the
financial statements..

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
and its employees are each required to make monthly
contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,250,
whichever is the lower, to the scheme. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income amounted to HK$952,000 (2012:
HK$532,000).

As at 31 March 2013, there were no forfeited contributions

available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2012: Nil).

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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ARIE (m)

(ii) BFAEE
RIBERR - BEBENLEE A 4
ROEN 2 EA A -

EIKEREE

AEBERAEBEAERERZ2MARHIER
e (B8 - &t 2 EETIERN
SEZEEDRFKA  UEHNBEXFEAE
HleEER AEEREESETAKAR
¥ 2 5% 31,25078 7 (ABUEE A 2E) MEt
SELES - AEERBRERESBIZE
BEERRER SRR T SR -

AREBR BN E QR ZEE T HE BT
BRZBERERRABHEIZKE - 1%
HIE R RIRRF 2 5 L BRI R KA A
AEIEFAR RN - REEL A BRIKE
Mt 2 BAEERHMNEEMRR -

HEZZT—=F=-A=1+—HILFE %
& ) 3R IR 48 A R EIE B 5 E 49 952,000
BIL(ZF—ZF 1 532,000 L) WER
REEERERMRE -

R-ZFE—=F=A=+—H8"
AR F RN 2 BRI R
——F O E) -

R E B I ]
(_ ==
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, bank balances, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and bank borrowing.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

35. I TH

AEEY TEHBTAAGTHPEERE -
SRITHES PRI K R OE A B KO - B
BE 30 % B A 3RIE A R SRATIE Y - 2250
BTAZSHBEREMIETHE - BRZHET
EAMZARENAREZSER 2 BER
SINT o BIREE IR ERZZEB AR
BB A R AR BRI

(@) cCategories of financial instruments (@) BT EER

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets B EE
Available-for-sale investments A EERXRE 929 925
Loan and receivables B e R IE
— Trade and other receivables — FEURBR T N H fih FE UG kT 242,945 116,815
— Cash and bank balances — R4 NIRRT 29,157 108,931
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 62,876 43,258
335,907 269,929
Financial liabilities g S =R
Amortised cost BESHR AR
— Bank borrowing —RITEE 35,910 18,504
— Trade and other payables — JERTRR R E Ath JE AT RRIR 138,951 141,080
— Contingent Consideration — ERSARE
payable 52,360 -
227,221 159,584
ANNUAL REPORT 2013 o 4£#f 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financia

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk

132

0]

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group's functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group's business activities are primarily
exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of
Renminbi (“RMB") against Hong Kong Dollar.
The net assets/liabilities of certain investments
of the Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's significant

35. T A @)
(b) mEZEK
(i) SERBR
SNERB AR R E L 5 RE

REERABUREEINGEER
PONEEETHERES - ARBEH
HASMNEFHE 2 F A NS R,
@ AREEHFETEMHEAR
BETARB DA BTERZI
R - NREERFEEDRE

ZBE/BEFRRRZINER
Bk - EEEREERINER
B - WHNE B EEZ B LRI
TR o

RIBEHR - AEREAINEGHE

foreign currency denominated monetary ZEKEW}U EEREEAGERRA
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the BT :
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F T =ZBE-=ZFE —T-—-fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TERT FAT TET FAT
Renminbi AR 152,226 121,574 142,462 158,057
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a

Notes to the Consolidated Financ

NN

35. BT A m@m)

(b) %R (&)
(i SRR (E)

INEG IR T

AEE T EmEARERIESR
28 TRAEJAREHAR
AR EBEXIAREER
f21E5% < BURRIE - 5% WA EE
EIEA B BRSNS L2 B P
RSREL X - RREEELE
Rt H 2 BB BAIET
i HREIMBEHRLB L
SMEFHEEB AR - WIRINELE
RZ5EHNFHEAHEEH
B  ATEHBRNASEE
DEEER L AREESS Al
REEBEBRBERD - HAKE

v

|'Statements -

5% change in foreign currency exchange rates.
A positive number below indicates a decrease
in loss for the year where the functional
currencies of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the functional
currencies of the Group against the Renminbi,
there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss, and the balances below would be

Nt EB R ARBEZESS Al
HERERSMERZEE K
THEHRTEKASRE -

negative.
Effect on loss
of the year end and
accumulated losses Effect on equity
HEZFABRER
EtFBEzEE HRAZZE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —EB-—F ZE-—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FA&T
Renminbi AR 488 (1,824) 488 (1,824)
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

134

(i)

(i)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group’s exposure of bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant
as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
variable-rate bank balances at the end of the
reporting period was the amount outstanding
for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March
2013 would decrease/increase by HK$80,000
(decrease/increase by 2012: HK$415,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk on its variable-
rate bank balance.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments and
held-for-trading investments. The Group’s price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
listed in Hong Kong. The management monitors
the price risk and will take appropriate actions
when necessary.

E AT SFUES

/

il
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(b) ™
(i)

(i)
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SR ()

A= @k
AEBERSREF ELREREEH
RITEHRBR - EEER/AE
B RRITAEBRAT 2 P K @R E
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Y 2 2 B SRR 0T

AT ERE DM IIRBRIRE B
REHZFXRERMRER E%v‘
FRRNIME R 2T BIRITA
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& FIE 7+ T B 50 (B2
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For the year ended 31 March2013 #Z=ZE—=F=A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

35. BT A m@m)
(b) TR &)

(iii) Price risk (continued)
Equity price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2013, if the quoted market
price of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
classified as held-for-trading investments had
been increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year would have increased/
decreased by HK$3,144,000 as a result
of change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments. (2012: HK$2,163,000)

(c) Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties,
is the carrying amount of respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk on trade and other
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than industry
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had concentration of credit risk as over 86%
(2012: over 90%) of the total trade receivables was
due from 1 (2012: 1) major customer which had no
history of default. The Group has policies and place
for the control and monitoring of such credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group’s bank deposits are deposited placed with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(i) EBER(H)
BRAEWEFEE T
AT SR E DM TR RS HIR
AR ERER MRS -

RZE—=F=R=+—8H" 1h
RRBIEEECRESENES
MR %ﬁﬁ#&m{?‘:i‘bu/md\
5% i FiT B b B g 5 N
RNEBFERTE RN GERE
BEBEZRERNTFEZHE MR
DH#)3,144,0008TT( ZF— =4 -
2,163,000/ 7T) °

(c) FERR
AR HGHUFARERITEAMCAEE

SRBBBERRZEREERRIIKE
RAEMBHAMESIAREC RN
BEZEME-

MEWER R EMERGRIEMES - &
EEESCEERREIEXEEP
ZERFE (MIESEEP EEMETE)
e AEERBRKEST 2B
NEERAEEHRERNELHFREKX
HEEFEL NMEHK  NEEK
REESEHER  REAEK—% (=
TE—F: —H)WEERERTHE
FERFPZFENERERREERR
86% (ZZE— 4 : HiBI0%) - N&EH
BRI EERBEEBR

RBELZEERRER  RAANX
EEMBRTFEREETERNES LT
HEZIRTT -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. T HEm@m
(d) Liquidity risk (d) "BELRR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EETHESRRE  KEEEERK
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash BREEREEEVHFNEREER
equivalents deemed adequate by the management BREKE  NAKEBRSERESR

to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations.

The table below analysis the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the end
of each reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows.

%&/ﬂﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁmi/&@/z%;% °© ﬁfi
ErTHEMNETZEeR N  BRA
BRAMBERENEMBEE -

TREARAKEBRARNFGRAZSRE
HARZALOFNEB L2 FIsr R A8
BEBARNE s 2 BEEST - &
FABRBELSERAEHNRMBERER
B TREENERACHEENRE -

The Group KEH
On demand Total Total carrying
or less than 3months  More than undiscounted  amount at
3 months to 1year 1year  cashflows 3132013
R-B-=%
REXS, iRz *BR ZA=t-B
HPR=EAR - BB-F RERESH ZERALE
2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=f TR TR FEn FhEx FhEx
Bank borrowing REE - 38,535 - 38,535 35,910
Trade and other payables ERESREEAFUE 138,951 - - 138,951 138,951
Total &3t 138,951 38,535 - 177,486 174,861
136 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &&4 fn RIEERTEE AR A R
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

(e)

@\s3

35. BT A m@m)

(d) FEE =B &)

The Group NEE
On demand Total  Total carrying
or less than 3months More than  undiscounted amount at
3months to 1year Tyear  cashflows 31.3.2012
RZE——F
REKS FUH ZA=t+-AH
PR=@A ZEAZE-% BE-F Rensgd RREE
2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“B--F T T T T T
Bank borrowing RITHEE - 19,143 - 19,143 18,504
Trade and other payables ERERRA R 141,080 - - 141,080 141,080
Total et 141,080 19,143 - 160,223 159,584

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and
ask prices respectively; and

o The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the financial statements approximate their fair values.

(e) MIBIAZATE
BHEEMVBABEZ AFEL T
HEET

o BREGRMEHLEEETS
BECZUMBEENYBAGBZA
FEIDRZERETSEEAR

s HMMBEERMBABZAF

TE TR ARTEBENABEM
BEMMERZER - EITRR
REREDNEE °

EEZRR NUBBRBRIUBE
EMMHABECREEEE QA FER
=
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For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. I T AEm)
(e) Fair value of financial instruments (e) BIIEZAFYE#E)
(continued)

138

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation technigues that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

TREHNTRAFERRBELTELZ
MBTEADN  HBRAFEBREMS
BEAR—E=A:

F—MAFEAEDNEHRAEERE
BRRBETIS MR OCRAR)ERSH

BE_RATEAENIREE-—BRAE
EIREAIN - AT E & (BHER) AR
(BIEERITE) BEEXLREEREM
BRABESGL &

FE=ZMRTFEFEREFALIR
BABEMSEBEZEEXRBEHA
BEZBRZBAE) 2HEXMNE
&I o

The Group and the Company

AEBERKADTF
2013 2012
—E-—= —E——F
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£ E-R E=R EH FH F=MH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FET FAET FET
Equity securities REBEMZ
listed in fEAFE S
Hong Kong, EAYE
at fair value
Held-for-trading HIEEFKRE
investments 62,876 - - 43,258 - -
Contingent JEFT S ARAE
consideration
payable - - 52,360 - - -
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in RREFE  F—MEE_R 2B
both years. fmedcE o
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36.

37.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate
return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and process during the
years end 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets.
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2013
was 33% (2012: 32%).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

36.

37.

EXREHE
AEBEREL B BARBARBHER

SERELE 7 8e ) 0 LABRR RS KO K
B E AT AE B AR = A R B IR A 2R
T H)[OH o

REBBEBELEERIAREBEEZRRE
BERRARERLERE - BEFNFAEEARN
BRiE  AEEREARINTRIZRES
3 ARRREEAR BIIFROKEEE
EURLVESR #E_T—=Fk=
FZA=1+—HUIEFE UELHEHEEZ -
BUR RIEFIEL &8 o

AEBZEEBBELXR(RRBERNEE
ErE)EEERER - KEBE KB B
SEEABHERMBEZKTE - RZE—=
FZA=T—RAZEEARBLEA3Z%(=
— I 1 32%) °

ERBALRS

ARRABERAEMBRB(EAARRZH B
ADIBZERERHERRARE B H -
BAGRAK R -

FEEBABZHE

FRN EEREMETEEEAEBZEESW
T~

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FiET

Short-term benefits X HAtE A 2,501 874
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 7 17 3
2,518 882

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 o 4£#f 139



7 (NN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements'
e IR R R

For the year ended 31 March2013 HZ=—E—=F=A=+—HIFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Compensation of key management
personnel (continued)

37. BEBA LRSS @)
TEBEBEAECZME @)

The remuneration of Directors and other members of EENEMTEEEBAB NS BAHFME
key management is determined by the remuneration EeZERARAE Y EZB N TISBIEET -
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FEME A EIFE
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2013 are as follows:

W=B-=#=A=1-0 ARAZLE
I8 2 FBES AT

Issue and paid

Proportion of nominal

Place of up capital/ value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of registered registered capital held  Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
ERTR KARFBECRTRE
ARER TR BN ATERFS BEREERRA ZMREEERDL FEER
Directly Indirectly
B LiE
New Chinese Medicine  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Bk company L3BAZ 10,0007 T REZER
MBEERAA BREEATA
NCM Healthcare (HK) Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Trading of healthcare
Limited B company LER2ET products
MBERRE(EE) BREMFATF RERERES
BRAF
Metropolitan Global British Virgin Islands Limited liability Ordinary US$50,000 100% - Sale of electronic
Trading Limited EBRLES company LA 50,000E T components
RAFHEHERAR BREFATA HEETFHMH
Kingswell International ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Sale of electronic
Limited ) company TRk AT components
FBEBRERAA BREAAF HEETHH
Luxuriant Tech British VirginIslands  Limited liability Ordinary US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Investments Limited ~ HBELZEHS company E3BAR 50,000 T KEZR
EREREBRAA BREERA
Royal Kit Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
HEESERAF & company A% 10,0007 7T REER
BREEATA
Elite Charm Investments  British VirginIslands  Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited RERUEE company TRER1ET BEER
BEREBRAR BREERF

140 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. TEHNBEARFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Issue and paid Proportion of nominal
Place of up capital/ value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of registered registered capital held  Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
ERTR KAFFBCRITRE
NRER HMRY Y ATERES BERAK/ZREA EMRAAEBAL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# B3
Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group &8 company L@R1BT BREZR
Limited BREFATF
A2 RITEE
BRAE
LST Operating Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Distribution of
0] company TR 1T biomedical and life
BREFLA secences products
EmbBER
BALS Distribution Limited - Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Distribution of
B company TRER1AT biomedical and life
BREAATF secences products
PEHENBER
ERREER
BALS Cellular Technology Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Distribution of
Limited 0] company LTER BT biomedical and life
BREMLA secences products
DEENEER
ERREER
159 Regenerative British VirginIslands ~ Limited liability Ordinary US$100 51% - Investment holding
Medicine Group (HK) HEBREZEES company Bl ES REER
Limited BREELTA
10ELBEEE (FE)
BRRE
159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51% Stem cell anti-aging
(H.K) Limited B company L@ 1ET application-related
BE19REERL BEREMLA service
BRAT BERRREER
TRERS
159 Human Aging Test ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51% Human aging
Laboratory (H.K.) Limited &7 company LER1ET test service
BE19AEBRERA AREARTA AEZZAHRS
FUOBERAAE
159 Autologous Stem Cell Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51% Storage and processing
LifeBank (HK) Limited ~ &8 company LER1ET of stem cells
BB 19 ERENRARE BREFLTF BABmET RN
BRRE
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

38. XRMBARAFR @

Issue and paid

Proportion of nominal

Place of up capital/ value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of registered registered capital held  Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
ERTR KARFBCRIRE
ARER EMRY Y ATERS BERAR/ZREA EMRAEEBAL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# i
159 Hematopoietic Stem  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51% Research and
Cell Technology Institute &% company LERIET development of stem
(H.K) Limited BREFAR cells technology
F5 159 M B AR R RSB
RERER AT
159 International Health ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51% Stem cell health
Club Limited £ company LER1BT services
159 Bl (e R (R 4420 BREEATA BARRRERS
BRAT
FYTEAERES The People’s Republic  Limited liability HK$50,000,000 - 100% Trading of cotton yam
BREAR of China company 50,000,000 7T BYES
hE AR ARE AREEATA
ItRPRZEEEZA  The People’sRepublic  Limited liability HK$20,000,000 - 100% Business consultancy
BRAE of China company 20,000,000 %75 EEEE!
HEARAFE BREFATA
IRPRZERE The People’s Republic — Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
BRRE of China company AR 10,000,00075 REER
HREARLRE BREAATF
5EEABELAE The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 52% Funeral and
BREMTAF of China company AR#10,000,0007T related business
R ARAAE EREAATF BERABER
AR RBERS The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 51% Funeral and
BRAT of China company AR #30,000,0007C related business
HE AR AR BREFLAF BEREBES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

142
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39. MATERIAL EVENTS 39. EXEHE
Framework agreement in relation to EERIGELE URAIREE
establish a joint venture to set up and RO 2 EZR R

operate a research centre

On 8 February 2013, Elite Charm Investments Limited
("Elite Charm”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a framework agreement
(the "Framework Agreement”) with Tongji University
Advanced Institute of Translational Medicine, [7 7 A £ K
B E 5 BT (Tongji University Affiliated Oriental Hospital*),
Shanghai Advanced Research Institute, Chinese Academy
of Sciences and Bt Jk g AR (_£)8) AR A A (Lianzhao
Stem Cells Technology (Shanghai) Company Limited*)
(collectively, the “Parties”). Pursuant to the Framework
Agreement, the Parties intend to establish a joint venture
(the “JV”) to set up and operate a research centre (the
“"Research Centre”) to conduct research in stem cell
science and technology in transforming stem cell research
results into clinical and commercial use.

Elite Charm would provide the JV with capital investment
up to RMB60,000,000 payable in cash from the internal
resources of the Company for the purpose of renovation
of the related premises, acquisition of equipment and
facilities and operation of the Research Centre. Elite Charm
would also provide management service to the JV and the
Research Centre. The other Parties would contribute mainly
one or more of the following: capital investment, premises,
research knowledge and experience, human resources,
reputation and payment of staff remuneration.

Details of the Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 8 February 2013.

As at the date of this report, the Framework Agreement
has still not yet been completed.

RZE—ZF_ANB ARAZEEZR
& M B A A]Elite Charm Investments Limited
([Elite Charm ) B2 [E] ) K281 B 25 S
Zobr - EEKEMBRT B - PRIRER
;‘F%"iﬁﬁ?%ﬁ?z& kSRR (L8 B
NRI(FHE [FTRER DRI LER G (18

?ET:?Z%J) RIBIER W% - 5TH & JT B AL
BEER(AEE¥E])  URIKZENE

b (THFR A ]) TR AR 2R - 45
HARPRRRBCRBRRREEAR -

Elite Charmi#§ R & 2 b EREE R E&
% N R 60,000,0007C * AR RE] 2 AEL
BRNBSZN - UHEFEBRDE - K
EREREEA R OEE A - Elite
Charm I A& & ERRF L IREER
R - HAETH R SIS EE/ AU T —IH
ZIEER  BESRE W ARABRE
B ANER BERINEIHMH-

BEERBHZABERARFRHRR-Z
—=F_ANBZREARE -

WA E BH - ERIBREII AR
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39.

144

MATERIAL EVENTS (continued)

Acquisition agreement in relation to the
acquisition of Gold Arch Group Limited

On 28 March 2013, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition of GAGL") with Mr. Yang
Guofeng (“Mr. Yang"). Pursuant to the Acquisition of
GAGL, the Company conditionally agreed to purchase and
Mr. Yang conditionally agreed to sell 1 ordinary share of
US$1.00 each, representing the entire issued share capital
of Gold Arch Group Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“GAGL"), which has been granted
exclusive licences on the five patents, and all amounts
(whether principal, interest or otherwise) which GAGL owes
to Mr. Yang as at the date of completion of the Acquisition
of GAGL at a total consideration of HK$62,000,000 payable
in cash from the internal resources of the Company. Such
consideration shall be satisfied by HK$36,600,000 payable
at the execution of the Acquisition of GAGL, HK$10,000,000
payable within 14 business days after the execution of
the Acquisition of GAGL and HK$15,400,000 payable no
later than 3 months after the date of completion of the
Acquisition of GAGL.

The Company intends to commercialise the five patents
with a view to expand the Group’s existing business in

Hong Kong and the PRC.

Details of the Acquisition of GAGL were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 28 March 2013.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition of GAGL has
still not yet been completed.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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39. EXEE @)

FRABBEMERERRATZWE
i

R-B-Z4=A-+/\B ' XAREBE
I 55 4 (48 6.4 1) 5T ST B8 12 2% (1 GAGL IR

BB 1) - RIZGAGLYE - ARFBFRHERE

BEMBLEEKERETRS 1REE1.00
EnzEBRE  REBRLHESAMKT

ZrmEFEEERAR ([GAGL] - Z A F]
EENBENZBHRAA) 228D HTK
7N X GAGL R 72k GAGL Y s B BR&E R 15 58 £
ZFERBE(TRASE - FEREM) - AR
18 %% 62,000,000 7 7T » W i AR R B 2 AEB
BRARES A - ARAREBAENZEE GAGL
It B F 32 1+ 36,600,000 78 7T~ 7 % B GAGL
WeiE 12 148 & 3 B W32 1+ 10,000,000 % 7T K&
RAER K CACLIEEE RR =B ARNX
151 15,400,000/ 7T ©

ERAEEEREANEERTEZARE
% ARRREAEENETEENL -
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39. MATERIAL EVENTS (continued) 39. EXEE &)

Other Transactions

During the year under review, the Company has entered
a memorandum of understanding, a deed of assignment
and assumption, and a distribution agreement with other
parties. Details of them are show as following:

Memorandum of Understanding

On 11 November 2012, Life Sciences and Technologies
Group Limited (the “Investor”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the "MoU")
with Life Length, S.L. ("Life Length”), which is principally
engaged in the highly sophisticated and patented in-vitro
diagnostic testing of telomeres. Pursuant to the MoU,
the Investor may acquire an approximately 38% equity
stake in Life Length for a consideration of approximately
US$9 million. Life Length may form a joint venture with
the Investor to establish one laboratory in Hong Kong and
another in the PRC.

On 16 November 2012, the Investor granted Life Length
a loan facility of US$0.3 million repayable on or before 16
November 2013 at an annual interest rate of 8%. However,
on or before 16 February 2013, the Investor has the right
by written notice to Life Length to convert the loan facility
(together with accrued interest) into ordinary shares of Life
Length as representing 1.267% of the total issued share
capital of Life Length.

The MoU was expired in January 2013 and the Investor
has not exercised its right to convert the loan facility into
ordinary shares of Life Length. The loan facility and its
interest shall be refunded by Life Length on or before 16
November 2013.

Details of the MoU were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 November 2012.
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39.

146

MATERIAL EVENTS (continued)

Other Transactions (continued)

Deed of Assignment and Assumption

A deed of assignment and assumption (the “Deed of
Assignment and Assumption”) dated 11 January 2013
entered into between the Company, ETON CORPORATION
LIMITED ("ETON"), a connected person of the Company
by virtue of 100% of its entire issued share capital being
held by Mr. Tong Cheuk Fung, a director of the Company’s
five wholly-owned subsidiaries, and MEDIPOST Co., LTD.
(“"MEDIPOST") in relation to the assigning by ETON to the
Company of its rights and obligations under a distribution
agreement (the "DA of Product”) dated 2 November 2012
entered into between ETON and MEDIPOST in relation
to, inter alia, the distribution of the finished product of
CARTISTEM® at nil consideration.

Details of the Deed of Assignment and Assumption and
the DA of Product were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 January 2013.

Distribution Agreement

On 25 February 2013, LST Operating Limited ("LST"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a distribution agreement (the "DA of Telome”) with
Telome Health Inc. ("“Telome”). Pursuant to the DA of
Telome, Telome appointed LST as exclusive distributor
for Telome in Hong Kong and Macau to distribute the
ORAGENEeDx test kit for the collection of human DNA from
saliva samples and/or blood samples for use in determining
telomere length and the test (the “Product”) in Hong Kong
and Macau.

LST had paid to Telome an initial payment in the amount
of US$150,000, which is a non-refundable, but is creditable
against any payments payable by LST to Telome for the
purchase price for the Product during the initial period.
Telome shall conduct an inspection and validation of a
laboratory designed by LST which LST decides to use to run
the Telo Test and which may be set up by LST or by a third
party. After receipt of Telome’s validation certificate, LST
shall pay to Telome a validation payment in the amount of
US$650,000 in non-refundable and non-creditable basis.

Details of the DA of Telome were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 27 February 2013.
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40. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

41.

Acquisition agreement in relation to the
acquisition of a property in Shenzhen

On 27 May 2013, xR K ER B 5 B R 2 7 (Bio
Technology Trading Company Limited), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as the purchaser), &
Y 1 7% B ¥ m A R A A (Shenzhen Shunxing Logistics
Company Limited) (as the vendor) and Mr. Ji Hong and &
T m B E R AR A A (Shenzhen Manchen Real
Estate Development Company lelted) (as the guarantors)
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “SZ Property
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of a property
in Shenzhen. The consideration will be calculated at
RMB14,000 per square metre and is RMB33,600,000 in total
based on a gross floor area of 2,400 square metres which
will be subject to final determination. Such consideration
is payable in cash from the internal resources of the
Company and shall be satisfied by RMB23,520,000 payable
within 7 days from the date of execution of the Sz Property
Agreement, RMB6,720,000 payable within 3 days from the
date of passing of the completion inspection by the relevant
authorities and the balance payable within 3 days from
the date of the issue of the relevant E#Z# =% (land and
building title certificates) to the purchaser. The Company
intends that the property be used as the purchaser’s office
for its operation in the PRC.

Details of the SZ Property Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 May 2013.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition of a property in
Shenzhen has still not yet been completed.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of directors
onJune 27, 2013.
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The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

AEBBEEREVRFE

audited financial statements of the Group, were set out below:

AN
:%/T\D

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

& (M e A REEEZMBEHRR)BINOT

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EFENF 2 2F Z2——F Z2——F ZF—=

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FHT FET FHBxT

RESULTS E
Turnover ] 55,720 74,505 79,733 71,727 86,113
Loss before tax BrE A E 1B (1,116) (48,140) (9,879) (31,267)  (41,949)
Income tax FisHi (2,265) (1,537) 81 (758) (1,177)
Loss for the year NEEFE (3,381) (49,677) (9,960) (32,025) = (43,126)

Attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company  ARAAHEAE A (6,290) (39,769) (8,930) (28,448)  (35,614)
Non-controlling interest FEPR R S 2,909 (9,908) (1,030) (3,577) (7,512)

As at 31 March
R=HA=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENF —FEFF —T——F T——F Z8—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT T FHETT FHxT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER AR

Total assets BERTE 357,182 419,983 433,215 493,635 = 691,219
Total liabilities BfER5E (92,254)  (112,653)  (106,317)  (159,584) = (227,221)
Net assets BEFE 264,928 307,330 326,898 334,051 = 463,998
Non-controlling interest e 83,718 77,607 57,434 56,068 35,279
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